CEO
Perspective

Notice of 2003
Annual Meeting
and Proxy
Statement

Report to
Stockholders

e Management’s
Discussion and
Analysis

Consolidated
Financial Statements

’3%;,1

7% N,

APR 1 % 2003

TINC

TR m/' ?Rog‘ié

3056694 April 2, 2003
Dear Optika Shareholder: %\?&MSG\N’

As Tlook back on 2002, I see a year of significant accomplishment for
Optika. Our dedication to growing the business while providing the
highest quality software solutions that will ensure the success of our
customers and partners resulted in several considerable achievements
for our company. Despite a challenging economic environment, we
grew our revenue each quarter and achieved profitability in the second
half of the year by carefully managing our business. We continued to
strengthen our Balance Sheet and increased our cash reserves while
expensing all of our internal research and development. Additionally,
we implemented comprehensive solutions for many new customers
including The Clark Construction Group, New Plan Excel Realty Trust,
Wyeth Consumer Healthcare, URS Corporation, BAE Systems Control,
Entergy-Koch, and Home Products International.

These accomplishments were made possible because of our clear focus
on providing solutions that generate outstanding return on investment,
our dedication to the success of our customers and partners, and our
world-class product family. In 2003, T am optimistic about Optika’s
prospects for growth and profitability, due to four key factors.

First, we will continue to capitalize on our compelling vision to extend
the functionality of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) applications. In
2002 our focused efforts resulted in Optika introducing seamless
integrations with the newest versions of J.D. Edwards, Oracle E-
Business Suite and Microsoft Business Solutions. We also introduced
Acorde Payables—a combination of Acorde software pre-integrated
with leading ERP systems, professional services and best practices
workflows—allowing us to provide our customers with the industry’s
best return on investment. In 2003 we will make major inroads in this
facet of our business by working with large companies to integrate
Acorde with the financial modules of PeopleSoft, SAP and Baan. We
will continue to deliver a level of integration combined with specific
industry knowledge that enables us to increase the size of our
addressable market as well as improve the competitiveness of our
solutions.







Second, we are expanding the breadth of our core product offering with the introduction of new modules such as
Acorde Full Text and Acorde Records Manager (RM). These modules will allow us to generate follow-on revenue
from existing clients and attract new customers. Acorde RM addresses the growing requirement of companies to
implement legal retention and destruction policies for both paper and electronic records. As you might imagine, the
need for this type of product in the market is large. A stand-alone version of Acorde RM is currently available, and
it is our intention to have the integrated version of Acorde RM certified by October 2003 to meet the stringent
requirements of the Department of Defense. We have already started to aggressively market Acorde Records
Manager directly and through our channel.

Third, we will increase our sales channel by approximately 33 percent in 2003. We expanded both our North
American channel as well as our direct sales team by approximately 50 percent over the last 12 months. We are
already realizing positive dividends from our 2002 sales expansion and we will continue to make progress in this
area. By shifting internal resources, bringing on some of the industry’s most talented sales professionals, and
continuing the growth of our Advantage Partner reseller channel, we will greatly increase the number of people
directly involved in sales activities.

Finally, in every corporate communication and customer interaction, you will see us emphasize our differentiation
of delivering the industry’s best return on investment through intense customer focus. Every Optika employee is
dedicated to the success of our customers and partners. The strength of our products, people and processes is the
foundation that allows Optika to provide our new and existing customers with endless opportunities in the ever-
changing technology market.

We enter 2003 with the same commitment and focus as we demonstrated in 2002: to deliver the highest quality
products, build on our already strong customer and partner relationships, maintain an environment where our

employees can grow and prosper both personally and professionally, and work toward continuing a sustainable
business model that provides a solid return to our shareholders.

Thank vou for your continued support.

A b

Mark K. Ruport
President, CEO and Chairman
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OPTIKA

Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Optika Inc., which will be
held on Thursday, May 8, 2003 at 9:00 a.m. local time, at the Wyndham Colorado Springs, 5580 Tech Center Drive,
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80919. In addition to the matters to be acted upon at the meeting, which are described in
detail in the attached Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and Proxy Statement, there will be a report to the
stockholders on our operations. I hope that you will be able to attend.

Whether or not you plan to be at the meeting, please be sure to complete, date, sign and return the proxy card
enclosed with this Proxy Statement as promptly as possible so that your shares may be voted in accordance with your
wishes. Your vote, whether given by proxy or in person at the meeting, will be held in confidence by the Inspector of
Election for the meeting.

Sincerely,

A

MARK K. RUPORT
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President




OPTIKA

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
May 8, 2003

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS OF OPTIKA INC.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Optika Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), will be held on Thursday, May 8, 2003, at 9:00 a.m. local time, at the Wyndham
Colorado Springs, 5580 Tech Center Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80919, for the following purposes, as more
fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice:

1. To elect two Class III directors to serve a three-year term, or until their successor is elected and
qualified;

2. To approve the adoption of the 2003 Optika Inc. Equity Incentive Plan;

3. To approve an amendment to the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan to increase the maximum

number of shares of our common stock issuable under the plan by an additional 300,000 shares, from the
300,000 shares originally reserved for issuance;

4. To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent accountants for the fiscal year endmg
December 31, 2003;
3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment or

adjournments thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 20, 2003, the record date, are entitled to notice
of and to vote at the meeting. The stock transfer books will not be closed between the record date and the date of the
meeting. A list of stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting will be available for inspection at the executive offices of
the Company during normal business hours, for purposes related to the meeting, for a period of ten days prior to the
meeting.

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person. Whether or not you plan to attend,
please sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card as promptly as possible in the envelope enclosed for your
convenience. Should you receive more than one proxy card because your shares are registered in different names and
addresses, each proxy should be signed and returned to assure that all your shares will be voted. You may revoke your
proxy at any time prior to the meeting. If you attend the meeting and vote by ballot, your proxy will be revoked
automatically and only your vote at the meeting will be counted.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Steven M. Johnson
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, Secretary
and Chief Accounting Officer

Colorado-Springs, Colorado

April 2, 2003

Your vote is very important, regardless of the number of shares you own. Please read the attached proxy statement
carefully, complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card as promptly as possible and return it in the enclosed
envelope.




OPTIKA INC.
7450 Campus Drive, 2™ Floor
Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920

PROXY STATEMENT

FOR THE ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MAY 8§, 2003

General

The enclosed proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Optika Inc., a Delaware corporation,
for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Thursday, May 8, 2003 and at any and all
postponements or adjournments thereof. The meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m. local time at the Wyndham Colorado
Springs, 5580 Tech Center Drive, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80919. These proxy solicitation materials were first
mailed on or about April 2, 2003 to all stockholders entitled to vote at the meeting.

Because many of our stockholders may be unable to attend the meeting in person, the Board solicits
proxies by mail to give each stockholder an opportunity to vote on all matters presented at the annual meeting.
Stockholders are urged to: (i) read this Proxy Statement carefully; (ii) specify their choice in each matter by marking
the appropriate box on the enclosed proxy card; and (iit) sign, date and return the proxy card by mail in the postage-
paid, return-addressed envelope provided for that purpose.

All shares of the company’s common stock, $.001 par value per share and the company’s Series A-1
Convertible Preferred Stock, $.001 par value per share represented by properly executed and valid proxies received in
time for the meeting will be voted at the meeting in accordance with the instructions marked thereon or otherwise as
provided therein, unless such proxies have previously been revoked. Unless instructions to the contrary are marked, or
if no instructions are specified, shares of common stock and preferred stock represented by proxies will be voted for the
proposals set forth on the proxy, and in the discretion of the persons named as proxies on such other matters as may
properly come before the meeting.

Voting

The specific proposals to be considered and acted upon at the meeting are summarized in the accompanying
Notice of Annual Meeting and are described in more detail in this Proxy Statement. On March 20, 2003, the record
date for determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting, 8,362,799, shares of our common
stock were issued and outstanding and 731,851 shares of our preferred stock were issued and outstanding. Each
stockholder is entitled to one vote on all matters for each share of common stock or preferred stock held by such
stockholder on March 20, 2003. The presence at the meeting, either in person or represented by proxy, of a majority of
the issued and outstanding shares of common stock and preferred stock, on a combined basis, will constitute a quorum
for the transaction of business at the meeting. Stockholders may not cumulate votes in the election of directors.

All votes will be tabulated by the Inspector of Election appointed for the meeting, who will separately tabulate
affirmative and negative votes, abstentions and broker non-votes. Abstentions and broker non-votes are counted as
present for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting.
Directors are elected by a plurality vote. Since votes are cast in favor of or withheld from each nominee, abstentions
and broker non-votes will have no effect on the outcome of Proposal One. Abstentions will be counted towards the
tabulations of votes cast on other proposals and will have the same effect as negative votes, whereas broker non-votes
will not be counted for purposes of determining whether such proposal has been approved.

Mr, Steven M. Johnson, our Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, Secretary and Chief
Accounting Officer, has been appointed by the Board of Directors to serve as Inspector of Election at the meeting. All
proxies and ballots delivered to Mr. Johnson shall be kept confidential.




Revocability of Proxies

~ You may revoke or change your proxy at any time before the meeting by filing with Mr. Steven M. Johnson,
the Corporate Secretary, at our principal executive offices, Optika Inc., 7450 Campus Drive, 2™ Floor, Colorado
Springs, Colorado 80920, a notice of revocation or another signed proxy with a later date. You may also revoke your
proxy by attending the meeting and voting in person.

Solicitation of Proxies

We will bear the entire cost of solicitation, including the preparation, assembly, printing and mailing of this
proxy statement, the proxy and any additional soliciting materials furnished to stockholders. We will furnish copies of
solicitation materials to brokerage houses, fiduciaries and custodians holding shares in their names that are beneficially
owned by others so that they may forward this solicitation material to such beneficial owners. In addition, we may
reimburse such persons for their costs in forwarding the solicitation materials to such beneficial owners. The original
solicitation of proxies by mail may be supplemented by a solicitation by telephone, telegram or other means by
directors, officers or employees. No additional compensation will be paid to these individuals for any such services. -
Except as described above, we do not presently intend to solicit proxies other than by mail.

Recommendations of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the four propesals discussed in this Proxy Statement.




PROPOSAL ONE - ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
General

Two Class III directors are to be elected and qualified at the meeting. Our Second Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation provides for a classified Board of Directors consisting of three classes of directors
(designated as Class I, Class IT and Class III directors, respectively) having staggered three-year terms, with each class
consisting, as nearly as possible, of one-third of the total number of directors. At the 2000 Annual Meeting of .
Stockholders, the term of office of the Class III directors expired and Class III directors were elected for a full term of
three years. Atthe 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the term of office of the Class I directors expired and Class I
directors were elected for a full term of three years. At the 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, the term of office of
the Class II directors expired and Class II directors were elected for a full term of three years. At each succeeding
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, directors shall be elected for a full term of three years to succeed the directors of the
class whose terms expire at such annual meeting.

The nominees for election have agreed to serve if elected, and management has no reason to believe that the
nominee will be unavailable to serve. If the nominee is unable or declines to serve as a director at the time of the
meeting, the proxies will be voted for any nominee who may be designated by the Board of Directors to fill the
vacancy. Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them FOR the nominees
named below. The two candidates receiving the highest number of affirmative votes of the shares represented and
voting on this particular matter at the meeting will be elected to the Board of Directors, regardless of the number of
abstentions or broker non-votes, to serve a three year term and until their successors have been elected and qualified.

Information with Respect to Nominees and Directors
Set forth below is information regarding our directors and the directors nominees, including information

furnished by them as to principal occupations, certain other directorships held by them, any arrangements pursuant to
which they are selected as directors or nominees and their ages as of February 28, 2003:

Nominees:
Mark K. Ruport................ 50 President, Chief Executive 1995
Officer and Chairman of the Board
of Directors
Edwin Winder.................. 54 Director 2002
Directors:
James T. Rothe, Ph.D........ 59 Director 1999
Charles P. Schneider.......... 45 Director 2002
Alan B. Menkes................ 43 Director 2000

Business Experience of Directors and Neminees
Class I — Directors

Alan B. Menkes has served as a director since March 2000. Mr. Menkes is the Managing Partner
of Empeiria Capital, a private equity investing firm, beginning March 2002. From 1998-March 2002, he
was a Partner of Thomas Weisel Partners, Co-Director of Private Equity and a member of Thomas
Weisel’s Executive Committee. Previously, Mr. Menkes was a Partner with Hicks, Muse, Tate & Furst,
where he was employed from 1992 to 1998. Mr. Menkes serves on the Board of Directors of: CS
Technologies, Incentive Systems and IPNet Solutions.

Class II — Directors

James T. Rothe, Ph.D., has served as a director since May 1999. He is a Professor of Business at
the University of Colorado at Colorado Springs where he also served as Dean of the College of Business
from 1986-1994. Mr. Rothe is a member of the Board of Directors for Analytical Surveys, Inc., (ANLT),
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NeoCore LLC, and he is a Trustee of the Janus Funds. Mr. Rothe was a Principal of the Phillips-Smith
Group, a venture capital partnership from 1988-1999.

Charles P. Schneider has served as director since Jannary 2002. He is a Senior Vice President
with MDC Holdings, a publicly held holding company that owns and manages home building and sales
companies, since he joined them in June 2002. Prior to joining MDC Holdings, he was a management
consultant with Group HSC, a firm that he formed in October 2001. From June 1999 to July 2001, Mr.
Schneider was the President and Chief Operating Officer of eCollege, a publicly held software, ASP and
consulting services company serving the distance learning, education and training fields. From March 1994
to June 1999, Mr. Schneider was with the Oracle Corporation with his most recent position being the
Senior Vice President of Oracle’s consumer sector worldwide where he was responsible for the product,
marketing, sales, strategy and consulting organizations that served the packaged goods and retail industries.

Class III — Nominees

Mark K. Ruport has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer and a director since
February 1995. He has served as Chairman of the Board of Directors since May 1996. From June 1990 to July
1994, Mr. Ruport served as President and Chief Operating Officer, and later Chief Executive Officer, of
Interleaf, Inc., a publicly held software and services company that develops and markets document

" management, distribution and related software. From 1989 to 1990, Mr. Ruport was Senior Vice President of

Worldwide Sales of Informix Software, where he was responsible for direct and indirect sales and original
equipment manufacturers. From 19835 to 1989, Mr. Ruport served as Vice President North American
Operations for Cullinet Software.

Edwin C. Winder has served as a director since August 2002. He is the President and Chief
Executive Officer of TRADEC since he joined them in October 2000. Prior to joining TRADEC, Mr.
Winder was Senior Vice President of Worldwide Sales and Business Development at Active Software.
From 1990 to 1997, Mr. Winder worked for Informix Software in several key senior roles, with his most
recent position as the Senior Vice President, Japan Operations where he was responsible for growing the
business of the new Japanese subsidiary and increasing revenues. Prior to Informix, Mr. Winder was a
Vice President at Cullinet Software from 1983 to 1989, where he managed operations in Canada, Japan and
the United States.

There are no family relationships among the members of our Board of Directors or our officers.

Pursuant to a Securities Purchase Agreement dated February 9, 2000, among us, Thomas Weisel Capital
Partners, L.P. and other signatories thereto and the Amended Certificate of Designation of our Series A-1 Convertible
Preferred Stock, the holders of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock are entitled to designate one director for election or
appointment to our Board of Directors. Pursuant to the Securities Purchase Agreement, the holders of the Series A-1
Preferred Stock are also entitled to representation on all committees of the Board of Directors. In connection with the
Securities Purchase Agreement and the Certificate of Designation, on March 6, 2000 the Board of Directors appointed
Alan B. Menkes to the Board and to the Compensation Committee and Audit Committee of the Board. Mr. Menkes is a
Class I director.

Board Committees and Meetings

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, the Board of Directors held five (5) full meetings. The
Board of Directors has an Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee. Each of our incumbent directors attended
or participated in 75% or more of the aggregate of (i) the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors and (ii) the
total number of meetings held by all committees on which he served during the past fiscal year.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three (3) directors, Messrs Schneider, Rothe and Menkes each of
whom are considered independent as defined by the NASD Listing Standards under Rule 4200(a)(14). The Board of
Directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews internal auditing
procedures, the adequacy of internal controls and the results and scope of the audit and other services provided by our
independent auditors. The Audit Committee meets periodically with management and the independent auditors. The
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audit committee held two (2) meetings as a separate committee in 2002, and all members of the audit committee were
present when the company’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 were reviewed and
approved by the Board.

The Compensation Committee currently consists of two (2) directors, Messrs. Rothe and Menkes. The
Compensation Committee establishes salaries, incentives and other forms of compensation for our officers and other
employees and administers our incentive compensation and benefit plans. The Compensation Committee also has
exclusive authority to administer our 1994 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan, our 2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive
Plan and our 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and to make awards under such plans if applicable. Pursuant to the
provisions of the stock plans, the Compensation Committee has appointed a Secondary Committee of the
Compensation Committee, consisting of Mr. Ruport, to make option grants and direct stock issuances to eligible
persons other than officers and directors subject to the short-swing profit restrictions of the federal securities laws.
During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002, the Compensation Committee held four (4) meetings, and the
Secondary Committee acted by written consent on six (6) occasions.

The Board does not presently have a separate nominating committee. The Board of Directors as a whole
performs this function.

Director Compensation

Our directors receive compensation for services rendered as a director. Messrs. Rothe, Schneider and Winder
each receive a fee of $10,000 for each year of service as a director. All directors receive certain grants of stock options-
and reimbursement of expenses. We do not pay compensation for committee participation or special assignments of the
Board of Directors. l

Under the Automatic Option Grant Program of our stock plans, each individual who first joins the Board as a
non-employee Board member after July 25, 1996 will receive an option grant for 10,000 shares of common stock at the
time of his or her commencement of Board service, provided such individual has not otherwise been in the prior
employ of the company. In addition, at each annual stockholder’s meeting, beginning with the 1997 annual meeting,
each individual who is to continue to serve as a non-employee Board member will receive an option grant to purchase
2,500 shares of our common stock, whether or not such individual has been in the prior employ of the company.

Each automatic grant will have an exercise price equal to the fair market value per share of our common stock
on the grant date and will have a maximum term of ten years, subject to earlier termination following the optionee's
cessation of Board service. Each automatic option will be immediately exercisable; however, any shares purchased
upon exercise of the option will be subject to repurchase, at the option exercise price paid per share, should the
optionee's service as a non-employee Board member cease prior to vesting in the shares. The grant will vest in four
equal and successive annual installments over the optionee's period of Board service measured from the grant date.
Each additional 2,500-share grant will vest upon the optionee's completion of one year of Board service measured from
the grant date. However, each outstanding option will immediately vest upon (i} an acquisition of us by merger, asset
sale or a hostile takeover of us or (ii) the death or disability of the optionee while serving as a Board member.

At our 2002 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, Messrs. Rothe and Menkes each received an option grant to
purchase 2,500 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $1.98 per share, the fair market value per share of our
common stock on that date.

In connection with Mr. Winders’ appointment to the Board of Directors, Mr. Winder received an option grant
for 40,000 shares inclusive of the automatic option grant of 10,000 shares. The options are exercisable at a price of
$1.20 per share, the fair market value per share of common stock on the date of grant. The options will vest in four
equal and successive annual installments beginning August 19, 2003, provided Mr. Winder remains a Board member.




PROPOSAL TWO - APPROVAL OF THE 2003 OPTIKA INC. EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN.

We are asking our stockholders to approve our 2003 Equity Incentive Plan so that we can use it to assist us
in achieving the company’s goals of maintaining consistent profitable growth and increasing stockholder value,
while also receiving a federal income tax deduction for certain compensation paid under the Equity Incentive Plan.
Our Board of Directors has approved the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, subject to approval from our stockholders at
the Annual Meeting. If the stockholders approve the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, it will replace our 1994 Stock
Option Plan which will be terminated, except with respect to outstanding awards previously granted thereunder, and
no further options will be granted under the 1994 Stock Option Plan. Qur named executive officers and directors
have an interest in this proposal.

A total of 2,000,000 shares of our common stock have initially been reserved for issuance under the Equity
Incentive Plan. Additional shares of our common stock will be added to the Equity Incentive Plan on the first day of
each fiscal year beginning on the first day of our 2004 fiscal year and ending on the first day of our 2013 fiscal year
equal to the lesser of (a) 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock on the last day of the preceding fiscal year,
or (b) an amount determined by our Board of Directors. As of March 31, 2003, no awards have been granted under
the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan.

We believe strongly that your approval of the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan is essential to our continued
success and to the continued value of your investment. Our employees are our most valuable assets. Stock options
and other awards such as those provided under the Equity Incentive Plan are vital to our ability to attract and retain
outstanding and highly skilled individuals in the competitive labor markets in which we must compete. Such awards
also are crucial to our ability to motivate employees to achieve our goals of maintaining consistent profitable growth
and increasing stockholder value.

Summary of the Equity Incentive Plan

The following paragraphs provide a sﬁmmary of the principél features of the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “Plan”) and its operation. The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Plan, which is
included with this Proxy as Attachment A.

Background and Purpose of the Plan

The Plan permits the grant of the following types of incentive awards: (1) stock options, (2) stock
appreciation rights, (3) restricted stock, (4) performance units, and (5) performance shares (each, an “Award”). The
Plan is intended to increase the variety of incentives that we offer to eligible employees, non-employee directors and
consultants who provide significant services to us. This encourages stock ownership by key performers and aligns
their interests with our stockholders’ interests in our success. The Plan is also intended to further our growth and
profitability.

Administration of the Plan

The Compensation Committee of our Board of Directors (the “Committee’’) administers the Plan. The
members of the Committee must qualify as “non-employee directors™ under Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, and also as “outside directors” under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code (so that we can
receive a federal tax deduction for certain compensation paid under the Plan). The current members of the
Committee qualify under each of these standards.

Subject to the terms of the Plan, the Committee has the sole discretion to select the employees and
consultants who receive Awards, determine the terms and conditions of Awards (for example, the exercise price and
vesting schedule), and interpret the provisions of the Plan and outstanding Awards. The Committee may delegate
any part of its authority and powers under the Plan to one or more directors and/or our officers, but only the
Committee itself can make Awards to participants who are our executive officers.

. If an Award expires or is cancelled without having been fully exercised or vested, the unvested or
cancelled shares of common stock subject to the award generally will be returned to the available pool of shares
8




reserved for issuance under the Plan. Also, if we experience a stock dividend, reorganization or other change in our
capital structure, the Committee has discretion to adjust the number of shares available for issuance under the Plan,.
the outstanding Awards, and the per-person limits on Awards as appropriate to reflect the stock dividend or other
change.

Eligibility to Receive Awards

The Committee selects the employees and consultants who will be granted Awards under the Plan. The
actual number of individuals who will receive an Award under the Plan cannot be determined in advance because
the Committee has the discretion to select the participants. Our non-employee directors generally are not eligible to
receive discretionary Awards under the Plan. Instead, our non-employee directors are automatically granted Awards
of a predetermined number of nonqualified stock options for each year that they serve on our Board.

Stock Options

A stock option is the right to acquire shares of our common stock at a fixed exercise price for a fixed
period of time. Under the Plan, the Committee may grant nonqualified stock options and/or incentive stock options.
The Committee will determine the number of shares covered by each option, but during a given fiscal year, no
participant may be granted options covering more than 500,000 shares, except an additional 500,000 shares may be
granted to an employee in connection with his or her initial employment as inducement to join the company.

The exercise price of the shares subject to each option is set by the Committee but cannot be less than
100% of the fair market value (on the date of grant) of the shares covered by incentive stock options or nonqualified
options intended to qualify as “performance based” under Section 162(m) of the Code, unless nonqualified options
are otherwise so qualified.

In addition, the exercise price of an'incentive stock option must be at least 110% of fair market value if (on
the grant date) the participant owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all of
our classes of stock or that of any of our subsidiaries. The aggregate fair market value of the shares (determined on
the grant date) covered by incentive stock options which first become exercisable by any participant during any
calendar year also may not exceed $100,000.

An option granted under the Plan cannot generally be exercised until it becomes vested. The Committee
establishes the vesting schedule of each option at the time of grant. Options become exercisable at the times and on
the terms established by the Committee. Options granted under the Plan expire at the times established by the
Committee, but not later than 10 years after the grant date (except in certain cases of death, in which case a
participant’s option would remain exercisable for up to three years after the date of death).

The exercise price of each option granted under the Plan must be paid in full at the time of exercise. The
Committee also may permit payment through the tender of shares that are already owned by the participant, or by
any other means which the Committee determines to be consistent with the purpose of the Plan. The participant
must pay any taxes that we are required to withhold at the time of exercise.

Stock Appreciation Rights

Awards of stock appreciation rights may be granted in connection with all or any part of an option, either
concurrently with the grant of an option or at any time thereafter during the term of the option, or may be granted
independently of options. No participant may be granted stock appreciation rights covering more than 500,000
shares in any fiscal year.

The Committee determines the terms of stock appreciation rights, except that the exercise price of a stock
appreciation right may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant.

A stock appreciation right in connection with an option will entitle the participant to exercise the stock
appreciation right by surrendering to us a portion of the unexercised related option. The participant will receive in
exchange from us an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of the shares on the date of exercise of the
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stock appreciation right covered by the surrendered portion of the related option over the exercise price of the shares
covered by the surrendered portion of the related option. When a stock appreciation right granted in connection with
an option is exercised, the related option, to the extent surrendered, will cease to be exercisable. A stock »
appreciation right granted in connection with an option will be exercisable until, and will expire no Jater than, the
date on which the related option-ceases to- be exercisable or expires.

Stock appreciation rights may also be granted independently of options. Such a stock appreciation right
will entitle the participant, upon exercise, to receive from us an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value
of the shares on the date of exercise over the fair market value of the shares covered by the exercised portion of the
stock appreciation right on the date of grant. A stock appreciation right granted without a related option will be
exercisable, in whole or in part, at such time as the Committee will specify in the stock appreciation right
agreement.

Our obligation arising upon the exercise of a stock appreciation right may be paid in shares or in cash, or
any combination thereof, as the Committee may determine.

Restricted Stock

Awards of restricted stock are shares that vest in accordance with the terms and conditions established by
the Committee. The Committee will determine the number of shares of restricted stock granted to any employee or
consultant, but during any fiscal year of the company, no participant may be granted more than 500,000 shares of
restricted stock.

In determining whether an Award of restricted stock should be made, and/or the vesting schedule for any
such Award, the Committee may impose whatever conditions to vesting as it determines to be appropriate. For
example, the Committee may determine to grant an Award of restricted stock only if the participant satisfies
performance goals established by the Committee.

Performance Units and Performance Shares

Performance units and performance shares are Awards that will result in a payment to a participant only if
performance goals established by the Committee are achieved or the Awards otherwise vest. The applicable
performance goals will be determined by the Committee, and may be applied on a company-wide or an individual
business unit basis, as deemed appropriate in light of the participant’s specific responsibilities (see “Performance
Goals” below for more information).

During any fiscal year, no participant may receive performance units with an initial value of more than
$2.000,000 and no participant may receive more than 500,000 performance shares.

Non-Employee Director Stock Options

Under the Plan, our non-employee directors will receive annual, automatic, non-discretionary grants of
nonqualified stock options.

Each new non-employee director will receive an option to purchase 30,000 Shares as of the date he or she
first becomes a non-employee director. Each non-employee director also will receive on the date of the company’s
Annual Stockholders Meeting an option to purchase 2,500 Shares, provided that he or she remains an eligible non-
employee director and has served as a director for at least six months.

The exercise price of each option granted to a non-employee director is equal to 100% of the fair market
value (on the date of grant) of the Shares covered by the option. The option granted to a non-employee director
when he or she first becomes a non-employee director vests as to 1/4 " of the option on the first anniversary of the
grant date, and as to 1/4” of the option on each successive one year anniversary of the initial grant date thereafter, so
that the option will be vested in full on the fourth anniversary of the initial grant date (assuming that he or she
remains a non-employee director on each scheduled vesting date). All options granted thereafter to the non-
employee director will be vested one year from the grant date. However, if a non-employee director’s service on the
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Board terminates due to death, his or her unvested options will immediately vest.

Options granted to non-employee directors generally expire no later than 10 years after the date of grant. If
a non-employee director terminates his or her service on the Board prior to an option’s normal expiration date, the
period of exercisability of the option varies, depending upon the reason for the termination.

Additionally our non-employee directors may elect to forego receipt of all or a portion of any annual
retainer, committee fees and meeting fees otherwise due to them in exchange for restricted stock and/or options. The
procedures adopted by the Committee for elections shall be designed to ensure that any such election by a non-
employee director will not disqualify him or her as a “non-employee director” under Rule 16b-3.

Change of Control

In the event of a “‘change of control” of Optika, the successor corporation will either assume or provide a
substitute Award for each outstanding stock option and stock appreciation right. In the event the successor
corporation refuses to assume or provide a substitute Award, the Committee will provide at least 15 days notice that
the option or stock appreciation right will immediately vest and become exercisable as to all of the shares subject to
such Award and that such Award will terminate upon the expiration of such notice period. If the successor’
corporation assumes or provides a replacement Award and the participant is terminated for reasons other than
“misconduct” during the 12-month period following the change of control, then such participant’s Award will
immediately vest and become exercisable as to all of the shares subject to such Award.

In the event of a “change of control” of Optika, any repurchase or reacquisition right with respect to
restricted stock will be assigned to the successor corporation. In the event any such repurchase or reacquisition right
is not assigned to the successor corporation, the repurchase or reacquisition right will lapse and the participant will
be fully vested in such shares of restricted stock. If the repurchase or reacquisition right is assigned to the successor
corporation and the participant is terminated for reasons other than “misconduct” during the 12-month period
following the change of control, then the participant’s restricted stock (or the property into which the restricted
stock was converted upon the change of control) will immediately have any repurchase or reacquisition right lapse
and the participant will be fully vested in the restricted stock (or the property for which the restricted stock was
converted upon the change of control).

In the event of a “change of control” of Optika, the Committee or the Board may provide that the
Performance Units or Shares are assumed, terminated prior to the change of control and/or immediately vested prior
to the change of control. In the event Performance Units or Shares are assumed, then the successor shall have the
ability to reasonably and equitably adjust the applicable performance goals.

Performance Goals

The Committee (in its discretion) may establish performance goals applicable to a participant with respect
to an Award. At the Committee’s discretion, one or more of the following company performance goals may apply:
earnings per share, profit after tax, profit before tax, return on capital, return on equity, return on sales, revenue,
total stockholder return, market share, cash flow, operating margin and individual objectives.

Awards to be Granted to Certain Individuals and Groups

Except with respect to the Automatic Option Grant Program, awards under the 1994 Stock Option Plan and
the 2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive Plan are subject to the discretion of the Plan Administrator. As of the date of
this Proxy Statement, there has been no determination by the Plan Administrator with respect to future awards under
the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan. Accordingly, future awards are not determinable. For each of the executive
officers named in the Summary Compensation Table in this Proxy Statement and the various indicated groups, the
table below shows (i) the number of shares of Common Stock subject to options granted under the 1994 Stock
Option Plan and 2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive Plan during the year ended December 31, 2002 and (ii) the
weighted average exercise price payable per share under such options. No direct stock issuances have been made to
date under the 1994 Stock Option Plan or the 2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive Plan.
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Weighted

Number of Average Exercise -
Option ~ Price of Granted
Mark K. RUPOLt ..o e e s res st ie e 70,000 $0.70
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
Steven M. JONNSOM ..ovviiveeieeeiieceteeeeee sttt evesie e et sras st eseenseas 45,000 $0.70
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, Secretary
and Chief Accounting Officer
Christopher J. RYan ........ccccorirnneieccnncenie s 25,000 $0.70
Vice President - Marketing
James A, Franlin. ..ot se v v 10,000 $1.10
Vice President — North American Direct Sales
Thomas M. Rafferty .........ccocoviiiriveiiceecns et 25,000 $0.70
Vice President — Research and Development, Engineering
and Customer Support
All current executive officers as a group (5 persons).................. 175,000 $0.72
All current non-executive directors as a group (5 persons) ........ 87,500 $1.22
All employees, excluding executive officers, as a group
(28 PEISONS)...cceeeerreeieeieietrectcetsietete st resaevaste e saensa e seatssaeeas 183,000 $1.33

As of March 14, 2003 options covering 3,372,358 shares of Common Stock were outstanding under the
1994 Stock Option Plan and 2000 Non-Officer Stock Incentive Plan, 3,202,347 shares had been issued, and 170,011
shares remained available for future option grants.

Limited Transferability of Awards

Awards granted under the Plan generally may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise
alienated or hypothecated, other than by will or by the applicable laws of descent and distribution. However,
participants may, in a manner specified by the Committee, transfer nonqualified stock options (a) pursuant to a
court-approved domestic relations order, and (b) by bona fide gift to a member of the participant’s immediate
family, to a trust or other entity for the sole benefit of the member(s) of the participant’s immediate family, to a
partnership, limited liability company or other entity whose members are the participant and/or his or her immediate
family, or to a tax-qualified charity.

Federal Tax Aspects

The following paragraphs are a summary of the general federal income tax consequences to U.S. taxpayers
and Optika of Awards granted under the Plan. Tax consequences for any particular individual may be different."

Nonqualified Stock Options

No taxable income is reportable when a nonqualified stock option is granted to a participant. Upon
exercise, the participant will recognize ordinary income in an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value
{on the exercise date) of the shares purchased over the exercise price of the option. Any additional gain or loss
recognized upon any later disposition of the shares would be capital gain or loss.

Incentive Stock Options

No taxable income is reportable when an incentive stock option is granted or exercised (except for
purposes of the alternative minimum tax, in which case taxation is the same as for nonqualified stock options). If the
participant exercises the option and then later sells or otherwise disposes of the shares more than two years after the
grant date and more than one year after the exercise date, the difference between the sale price and the exercise
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price will be taxed as capital gain or loss. If the participant exercises the option and then later sells or otherwise
disposes of the shares before the end of the two- or one-year holding periods described above, he or she generally
will have ordinary income at the time of the sale equal to the fair market value of the shares on the exercise date (or
the sale price, if less) minus the exercise price of the option.

Stock Appreciation Rights

No taxable income is reportable when a stock appreciation right is granted to a participant. Upon exercise,
the participant will recognize ordinary income in an amount equal to the amount of cash received and the fair
market value of any shares received. Any additional gain or loss recognized upon any later disposition of the shares
would be capital gain or loss.

Restricted Stock, Performance Units and Performance Shares

A participant will not have taxable income upon grant unless he or she elects to be taxed at that time.
Instead, he or she will recognize ordinary income at the time of vesting in an amount equal to the fair market value
(on the vesting date) of the shares or cash received minus any amount paid for the shares.

Tax Effect for Optika

Optika generally will be entitled to a tax deduction in connection with an Award under the Plan in an
amount equal to the ordinary income realized by a participant and at the time the participant recognizes such income
(for example, the exercise of a nonqualified stock option). Special rules limit the deductibility of compensation paid
to our Chief Executive Officer and to each of our four most highly compensated executive officers. Generally,
under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, the annual compensation paid to any of these specified
executives will be deductible only to the extent that it does not exceed $1,000,000. However, we can preserve the
deductibility of certain compensation in excess of $1,000,000 if the conditions of Section 162(m) are met. These
conditions include stockholder approval of the Plan, setting limits on the number of Awards that any individual may
receive and for Awards other than certain stock options, establishing performance criteria that must be met before
the Award actually will vest or be paid. The Plan has been designed to permit the Committee to grant Awards that
satisfy the conditions of Section 162(m), thereby permitting Optika to continue to receive a federal income tax
deduction in connection with all such Awards.

Amendment and Termination of the Plan

The Board generally may amend or terminate the Plan at any time and for any reason.
Summary

We believe strongly that the approval of the Plan is essential to our continued success. Awards such as
those provided under the Plan constitute an important incentive for key employees and other service providers of
Optika and help us to attract, retain and motivate people whose skills and performance are critical to our success.

Our employees are our most valuable asset. We strongly believe that the Plan is essential for us to compete for talent
in the labor markets in which we operate.
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PROPOSAL THREE - APPROVAL TO AMEND THE COMPANY’S 2000 EMPLOYEE STOCK -
PURCHASE PLAN TO INCREASE THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES ISSUABLE UNDER THE
PLAN BY AN ADDITIONAL 300,000 SHARES

The Board of Directors adopted the Company’s 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “2000 ESPP™) in
March 2000, the stockholders approved the 2000 ESPP in May 2000 and it became effective on August 1, 2000,
The 2000 ESPP is intended to qualify as an “Employee Stock Purchase Plan” under Section 423 of the Code in
order to provide our employees with an opportunity to purchase common stock through payroll deductions. The
number of shares of common stock issuable under the 2000 ESPP is currently limited to 300,000 shares. On
February 20, 2003, our Board of Directors unanimously approved a resolution to increase the maximum number of
shares of common stock which may be issued over the term of the 2000 ESPP by an additional 300,000 shares
(increasing the maximum number of shares issuable over the term of the 2000 ESPP to 600,000 shares), subject to
approval by our stockholders at the Annual Meeting. Our Board of Directors is seeking stockholder approval of this
increase because as of March 31, 2003, the total number of shares that remained available for purchase under the
2000 ESPP was only 80,975 shares. .

The following paragraphs summarize the principal features of the 2000 ESPP. The summary is subject, in
all respects, to the terms of the 2000 ESPP, which we filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2000. We will provide promptly, upon request and without charge, a copy of the full text
of the 2000 ESPP to each person to whom this proxy statement is delivered. Requests should be directed to our
Corporate Secretary at our principal executive offices at 7450 Campus Drive, 2™ Floor, Colorado Springs, Colorado
80920.

Shares Reserved for the 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

A maximum of 300,000 shares of common stock were originally reserved for issuance under the 2000 ESPP,
pending adjustment for a stock split, or any future stock dividend or other similar change in our commeon stock or
capital structure. On March 31, 2003 a total of 80,975 shares remained available for purchase excluding the proposed
additional 300,000 shares. If the proposal is approved by the stockholders-at the Annual Meeting, an additional 300,000
shares of common stock will be available for issuance under the 2000 ESPP. ‘ i

Eligible Participants

All of our employees who are regularly employed for more than five months in any calendar year and work
more than 20 hours per week are eligible to participate in the 2000 ESPP. Non-employee directors, consultants, and
employees subject to the rules or laws of a foreign jurisdiction that prohibit or make impractical their participation in an
employee stock purchase plan are not eligible to participate in the 2000 ESPP.

Material Features of the Plan

The 2000 ESPP designates offering periods, purchase intervals and purchase dates. Offering periods are
generally non-overlapping periods of 24 months. The initial offering pericd began on the effective date of the 2000
ESPP, which was August 1, 2000.  Subsequent offering periods commenced as designated by the Plan Administrator.
Purchase intervals are generally six-month periods, with the initial purchase interval commencing on the effective date
of the 2000 ESPP and ending on the last business day in January 2001. Thereafter, purchase intervals have commenced
each February 1 and August 1. Purchase dates are the last business day of each purchase interval. If we merge with or
into another corporation, sell all or substantially all of our assets, or enter into other transactions in which all of our
stockholders before the transaction own less than 50% of the total combined voting power of the outstanding securities
following the transaction, the offering period then in progress will be shortened and each outstanding purchase right
will be automatically exercised prior to the effective date of such transaction.

On the first day of each offering period, a participating employee is granted a purchase right. An individual
who first becomes eligible to participate after the start date of an offering period may be granted a purchase right on any
subsequent quarterly entry date. A purchase right is a form of option to be automatically exercised on the forthcoming
purchase dates within the offering period during which authorized deductions are to be made from the pay of
participants and credited to their accounts under the 2000 ESPP. When the purchase right is exercised, the participant’s
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withheld salary is used to purchase shares of common stock. The price per share at which shares of common stock are
to be purchased under the 2000 ESPP during any purchase interval is the lesser of (a) 85% of the fair market value of
the common stock on the date of the grant of the participant’s entry date into that offering period (but in no event less
than the fair market value of the common stock on the start date of that offering period), or (b) 85% of the fair market
value of the common stock on the purchase date, which is the last day of a purchase interval.

Payroll deductions may range from 1% to 10% in whole percentage increments of a participant’s regular base
pay, inclusive of bonuses, overtime, shift-premiums, commissions, reimbursements or other expense allowances.
Participants may not make direct cash payments to their accounts. The maximum number of shares of common stock
that any employee may purchase under the 2000 ESPP during a purchase interval is 750 shares. The Internal Revenue
Code imposes additional limitations on the amount of common stock that may be purchased during any calendar year.

Plan Administration and Termination

The 2000 ESPP will be administered by our Board of Directors or a committee designated by the
company’s Board, which will have the authority to terminate or amend the 2000 ESPP, subject to specified
restrictions, and otherwise to administer the 2000 ESPP. and to resolve all questions relating to the administration of
the 2000 ESPP. Unless sooner terminated by the our Board of Directors, the 2000 ESPP will terminate upon the
earliest of (i) the last business day in July 2010, (ii) the date on which all shares available for issuance under the
2000 ESPP shall have been sold pursuant to purchase rights exercised under the 2000 ESPP or (iii) the date on
which all purchase rights are exercised in connection with certain specified corporate transactions. No further
purchase rights will be granted or exercised, and no further payroll deductions will be collected, under the 2000
ESPP following such termination.

Participation in the Plan

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, there has been no determination with respect to future participation
under the 2000 ESPP. Accordingly, future participation is not determinable. For each of the executive officers named
in the Summary Compensation Table and the various indicated groups, the table below shows (i) the number of shares
of common stock that were distributed during the year ended December 31, 2002 under the 2000 ESPP and (i) the
weighted average purchase price per share.

Number of Weighted
‘ Shares Average Purchase
Mark K. RUPOTt ..o e 0 --
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
Steven M. JORNSON ......ooviviieeienieie e eee e 0 --
Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, Secretary
and Chief Accounting Officer
Christopher J. RYan ........ccccccvcereneeiieinreeeeesene e v 0 --
Vice President — Marketing
~ James A, Franklin........ccooovieieiiiniiis et 0 --
: Vice President — North American Direct Sales
Thomas M. Rafferty ...........cooeoeieecieiiicicc e, 0 -
Vice President — Research and Development, Engineering
and Customer Support :
All current executive officers as a group (5 persons).......ccc.ev.ee. 0 -
All employees, excluding executive officers, as a group
(60 PEISONS)...viiiiieiiiieiiieiee et et e et b s e bbb seb e eeseraeane 75,148 $0.86

Certain Federal Income Tax Information

The 2000 ESPP is intended to qualify as an employee stock purchase plan within the meaning of Section
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423 of the Code. Under the Code, an employee who elects to participate in an offering under the plan will not
realize income at the time the offering commences or when the shares purchased under the plan are transferred to
him or her. If an employee disposes of such shares after two years from the date the offering of such shares
commences and after one year from the date of the transfer of such shares to him or her, the employee will be
required to include in income, as compensation for the year in which such disposition occurs, an amount equal to.
the lesser of (a) the excess of the fair market value of such shares at the time of disposition over the purchase price,: .
or (b) 15% of the fair market value of such shares at the time the offering commenced. In the event of a disposition
within such two-year or one-year periods, the employee will recognize ordinary income equal to the excess of the
fair market value of the shares on the purchase date over the purchase price paid for such shares. The employee’s
basis in the shares disposed of will be increased by an amount equal to the amount so includable in his or her
income as compensation, and any gain or loss computed with reference to such adjusted basis which is recognized
at the time of such disposition will be a capital gain or loss, either short-term or long-term, depending on the

holding period for such shares. In the event of a disposition within such two-year or one-year period, we will be
entitled to a tax deduction from income equal to the amount the employee is required to include in income as a
result of such disposition.

An employee who is a nonresident of the United States will generally not be subject to the U.S. federal
income tax rules described above with respect to the shares of our common stock purchased under the 2000 ESPP.

The foregoing is only a summary of the effect of federal income taxation upon the participant and
the Company with respect to the shares purchased under the 2000 ESPP. Reference should be made to the
applicable provisions of the Code. In addition, the summary does not purport to be complete, and does not
discuss the tax consequences of the income tax laws of any municipality, state or foreign country in which the
participant may reside.

Stockholder Approval
The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of the company present in person or represented by proxy

and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting is required for approval of the proposal to increase the number of shares
of common stock issuable under the 2000 ESPP by an additional 300,000 shares.
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PROPOSAL FOUR - RATIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Directors has appointed the accounting firm of KPMG LLP as our independent accountants for
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003, and is asking the stockholders to ratify this appointment. Approval of the
proposal to ratify the selection of KPMG LLP requires the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares present in person
or represented by proxy and entitled to vote at the meeting.

If the stockholders fail to ratify the appointment, the Board of Directors will reconsider its selection. Even if
the selection is ratified, the Board of Directors in its discretion may direct the appointment of a different independent
accounting firm at any time during the year if the Board of Directors believes that such a change would be in the best
interests of the company and its stockholders.

A representative of KPMG is expected to be available at the meeting and will have the opportunity to make a
statement if he or she desires to do so. The representative will be available to respond to appropriate questions.
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OWNERSHIP OF SECURITIES

The following table sets forth certain information known to us with respect to the beneficial ownership of our
stock as of March 1, 2003 by (i) all persons known to us who beneficially own five percent (5%) or more of our stock,
(i1) each director and nominee for director, (iii) the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table
below, and (iv) all current directors and executive officers as a group.

Shares

Name and Address of Beneficially Percentage of Shares:
Beneficial Owner Owned(1)2)  Beneficially Owned(1)(2)
Mark K. RUPOTE (3).cevurvvererereeereesissesscesssseseseeeesesesseesssssssssessssensssess 548,737 6.2%

7450 Campus Drive, Suite 200

Colorado Springs, CO 80920
Steven M. JONNSOMN (4).....coovrirriiieieeriseieee et ese e e snaes 272,136 3.2%
Christopher J. RYan (5) .c..ocevrueureiniieecccreeneereneesseeenenseesenesensnenns 62,667 *
James A, FranKlin (6) ...cccovocvnienenincenreennin e sesseesseseneneseenennens 46,000 *
Thomas M. Rafferty (7) ...coeverieieren e e 175,167 2.1%
Edwin C. WInder (8) ....ccvvevimmireienieiiisssesisesisnsas et ssesensessenns 91,000 1.1%
James T. Rothe Ph.D. (9) ..o e 69,500 *

- Alan B. MenKkes (10) ....coovvinnnnriiereneenesneece e s seseienne 15,000 *

Charles P. Schneider (11) oo 17,500 *
Thomas Weisel Capital Partners, L.P. (12)......ccccccoeviiieincneeinincnee, 1,042,887 11.1%

One Montgomery Street, Suite 3700

San Francisco, CA 94104
Dimensional Fund Advisors (13).....ccceeivieiinionciissesiee e 444,300 5.3%

1299 Ocean Ave., 11" Floor

Santa Monica, CA 90401
Frontenac VI Limited Partnership (14)....ccocoovvvrierveininnneerencncinenene. 437,067 52%

135 S. LaSalle Street, Suite 3800

Chicago, IL 60603
All directors and executive officers

as a group (9 persons) (12)....ccucvceerevvrerereonersnereereeesniesesions 2,340,593 22.3%
* Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1%. von
(1) Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table and pursuant to applicable community property laws, the

persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock.

) Based on shares of common stock outstanding as of March 1, 2003. Beneficial ownership is determined in

accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with
respect to securities. Shares issuable pursuant to options which are exercisable within 60 days of March 1,
2003, or upon conversion of our preferred stock, which is convertible into 1,042,887 shares of common stock
within 60 days after March 1, 2003, are deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of the person
holding such options or shares, but are not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of any other

person.

(3) Includes 491,237 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable or
will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003.

4) Includes 222,436 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable or

“will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003.

5 Includes 57,667 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable or
will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003.

) Includes 46,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable or
will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003.

) Includes 175,167 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options that are currently exercisable or

will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003
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€)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)
(14)

Includes 10,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted by the Company that are
currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003, 10,000 of which shares are
unvested and subject to our repurchase right.

Includes 62,500 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted by the Company that are
currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003, 35,000 of which shares are
unvested and subject to a repurchase right of the Company.

Includes 15,000 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted by the Company that are
currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003, 5,000 of which shares are
unvested and subject to a repurchase right of the Company. Does not include shares of common stock that
may be deemed to be beneficially owned by Thomas Weisel Capital Partners, L.P. and certain other
investment limited partnerships affiliated with Thomas Weisel Partners Group LLC (“TW Group™). Mr.
Menkes disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares.

Includes 17,500 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options granted by the Company that are
currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2003, 7,500 of which shares are
unvested and subject to our repurchase right.

Includes shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock owned by the TW Group which in the aggregate are
immediately convertible into 1,042,887 shares of common stock as reported on a Schedule 13D filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 12, 2002. Voting and investment power with respect to the
securities reported are shared by TW Group and certain of its affiliates. The business address for TW Group
is One Montgomery Street, Suite 3700, San Francisco, California 94104. Mr. Alan Menkes, one of our
directors, disclaims beneficial ownership of such shares except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.
See Note 10 above.

As reported on a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 10, 2003.
As reported on a Schedule 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 7, 2003.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND RELATED INFORMATION

The following table provides certain information summarizing the compensation earned by our Chief
Executive Officer and each of our other four most highly compensated executive officers whose salary and bonus was
in excess of $100,000 for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 (the “Named Executive Officers”), for services
rendered to us and our subsidiaries in all capacities for each of the last three fiscal years.

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Compensation
Annual Compensation Awards
Securities
Other Annual Underlying
Name and Principal Position Year Salary($) Bonus($)(1) Compensation($) Option (#).
Mark K. Ruport 2002 $240,000 $42,020 $14,704(2) 70,000
Chairman, Chief Executive 2001 240,000 84,000 12,925(2) 140,000
Officer and President 2000 229,800 - 17,567(2) -
Steven M. Johnson 2002 $160,000 $ 28,013 $13,206(4) 45,000
Chief Financial Officer, 2001 160,000 104,924(3) 11,976(4) 90,000
Executive Vice President 2000 160,000 -- 10,038(4) --
Secretary and Chief
Accounting Officer
Christopher J. Ryan 2002 $150,000 $26,262 $12,340(4) 25,000
Vice President - Marketing (5) 2001 66,538 14,375 2,858(4) 120,000
2000 -- -- --(4) --
James A. Franklin 2002 $130,000 - $99,074 $2,996(4) _ 10,000
Vice President - North America 2001 130,000 51,258 2,261(4) 35,000
Direct Sales (6) 2000 120,000 31,123 2,101(4) 20,000
Thomas M. Rafferty (7) 2002 $145,000 $25,387 $10,832(4) 25,000
Vice President - Research and 2001 130,000 45,505 9,667(4) 50,000
Development, Engineering and 2000 130,000 -- 7.403(4) --

Customer Support

(1) Bonuses earned in 2000, 2001 and 2002 were paid in 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.
(2) Represents the cost of a company car for Mr. Ruport, matching contributions received under our 401(k) plan
*and insurance costs paid by the company. In 2002 and 2001, Mr. Ruport did not receive compensation for a

company car. '

(3) Mr. Johnson’s bonus for 2001 includes a commission of $67,964 earned in his role overseeing the company’s
indirect sales organization. Mr. Johnson has occupied this role since February 6, 2001.

(4) Represents matching contributions received under our 401(k) plan and insurance costs paid by the company.

(5) Mr. Ryan joined us as Vice President of Marketing on July 23, 2001.

{6) Mr. Franklin joined us on January 25, 1999 and is Vice President of North America Direct Sales. Mr.
Franklin’s bonus for 2002, 2001 and 2000 include commissions of $99,074, $41,258, and $22,668 respectively.

(7) Mr. Rafferty joined us as Vice President of Research and Development, Engineering and Customer Support on
March 15, 1999.
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Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

The following table contains information concerning the stock option grants made to each of the Named
Executive Officers for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. No stock appreciation rights were granted to these
individuals during 2002.

Individual Grants (3)
Percent of
Total Potential Realizable
Options Value at Assumed
Number of  Granted to Annual Rates of Stock
Securities =~ Employees Price Appreciation for
Underlying in ’ Exercise Option Term(1)($)
Options Fiscal Price Per Expiration
. -Name Granted Year Share (2) Date 5% 10% .
Mark K. Ruport 70,000 19.6% $0.70 10/16/12 $30,816 $ 78,093
Steven M. Johnson 45,000 12.6% $0.70 10/16/12 $ 19,810 $ 50,203
Christopher J. Ryan 25,000 7.0% $0.70 10/16/12  $11,006 $27,890
James A. Franklin 10,000 2.8% $1.10 01/23/12 $ 6,918 $ 17,531

Thomas M. Rafferty 25,000 7.0% $0.70 10/16/12 $ 11,006 $ 27,890

(1) There can be no assurance provided to any executive officer or any other holder of our securities that the
actual stock price appreciation over the ten-year option term will be at the assumed 5% and 10% levels or at
any other defined level. Unless the market price of the common stock appreciates over the option term, no
value will be realized from the option grants made to the executive officers.

(2) The exercise price may be paid in cash, in shares of the common stock valued at fair market value on the
exercise date or through a cashless exercise procedure involving a same day sale of the-purchased shares.
The Plan Administrator may also assist an optionee in the exercise of an option by (i) authorizing a loan
from us in a principal amount not to exceed the aggregate exercise price plus any tax liability incurred in
connection with the exercise or (ii) permitting the optionee to pay the option price in installments over a
period of years upon terms established by the Compensation Committee. The Plan Administrator has the
discretionary authority to reprice outstanding options under the Plan through the cancellation of those
options and the grant of replacement options with an exercise price based on the lower fair market value of
the option shares on the re-grant date. No options were repriced in 2002.

(3) The options were granted pursuant to the 1994 Stock Option Plan. Each option has a maximum term of ten
years measured from the grant date, subject to earlier termination upon optionee’s cessation of service with
us. For Messrs Ruport, Johnson, Ryan and Rafferty, the options will vest quarterly over a four-year time
period measured from the grant date with 15% vesting on the first quarterly vesting date or 1/16/03 with the
remaining options vesting equally over the remaining 15 quarters. Mr. Franklin’s options vest equally over
a four year annual period. The option shares will fully vest in the event we are acquired by merger or asset
sale, unless the option is assumed by the acquiring company. In addition, if the option is assumed by the
acquiring company, the option shares will vest in full upon the termination of the optionee’s service, '
whether involuntarily or through a resignation for good reason, within eighteen months following the
acquisition.
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Aggregated Option Exercises in 2002 and Fiscal Year-End Option Values

The table below sets forth certain information with respect to the Named Executive Officers concerning the
unexercised options they held as of the end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002,

Number of Securities

Underlying Inexercised Value of Unexercised in-the-Money
QOptions at FY-Fad(#) Options at FY-End((S)(1)
Shares Value
Acquired on Realized

Name Exercise (#) Q2 Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Mark K. Ruport -- - 459,271 87,500 - © $23,800
Steven M. Johnson -- -- 201,886 68,750 - $15,300
Christopher J. Ryan -- -- 37,500 107,500 - $ 8,500
James A. Franklin 11,500 $12,986 36,625 26,875 -- . --
Thomas M. Rafferty - -- 133,750 61,250 -- $ 8,500

(1) Based on the fair market value of the option shares at fiscal year-end ($1.04 per share on the basis of the
closing selling price on the Nasdaq National Market at fiscal year-end) less the exercise price.

(2) The value realized for the exercise of shares is based upon the average of the high and low fair market
values on the date of exercise less the exercise price. This does not necessarily reflect actual stock sales by
the named individuals or the cash proceeds realized therefrom.

Employment Contracts, Termination of Employment Arrangements and Change of Control Agreements

We have an agreement with Mark K. Ruport that provides for his employment as our President and Chief
Executive Officer at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Mr. Ruport's base salary is $240,000, subject to annual
review by the Compensation Committee, and he is eligible to receive performance bonuses which may be awarded by
the Compensation Committee. Mr. Ruport is eligible to receive severance equal to one year's base salary in the event
he is terminated by us without cause.

We have an agreement with Steven M. Johnson that provides for his employment as our Chief Financial
Officer, at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Mr. Johnson's base salary is $160,000, and he is eligible to receive
performance bonuses which may be awarded by the Compensation Committee. Mr. Johnson is also eligible to receive
commissions in his role overseeing our indirect sales efforts. Mr. Johnson is eligible to receive severance equal to six
months' salary in the event he is terminated by us without cause.

We have an agreement with Chris J. Ryan that provides for his employment as Vice President -Marketing,
at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Mr. Ryan’s base salary is $150,000, and he is eligible to receive
performance bonuses which may be awarded by the Compensation Committee. Mr. Ryan is eligible to receive
severance equal to six months’ salary in the event he is terminated by us without cause.

We have an agreement with James A. Franklin that provides for his employment as Vice President —North
America Direct Sales, at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Mr. Franklin’s base salary is $135,000, and he is
eligible to receive performance commissions. Mr. Franklin is eligible to receive severance equal to three months’
salary in the event he is terminated by us without cause.

We have an agreement with Thomas M. Rafferty that provides for his employment as Vice President-Research
and Development, Engineering and Customer Support at the discretion of the Board of Directors. Mr. Rafferty's base
salary is $145,000, subject to annual review by the Compensation Committee, and he is eligible to receive performance
bonuses which may be awarded by the Compensation Committee. Mr. Rafferty is eligible to receive severance equal to
six months' salary in the event he is terminated by us without cause.
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In connection with an acquisition of us by merger or asset sale, each outstanding option held by the Chief
Executive Officer and the other executive officers under our stock plans will automatically accelerate in full and all
unvested shares of common stock issued to such individuals pursuant to the exercise of options granted or direct stock
issuances made under such plan will immediately vest in full, except to the extent such options are to be assumed by,
and our repurchase rights with respect to those shares are to be assigned to, the successor corporation. Any options that
ate assumed in an acquisition will automatically accelerate, and any repurchase rights which are assigned will
terminate, in the event the executive's service is terminated, whether involuntarily or through a resignation for good
reason, within eighteen months following the acquisition. In addition, the Compensation Committee as Plan
Administrator of the stock plans has the authority to provide for the accelerated vesting of the shares of common stock
subject to outstanding options held by the Chief Executive Officer or any other executive officer or the shares of
common stock purchased pursuant to the exercise of options or subject to direct issuances held by such individual, in
connection with the termination of the officer's employment following certain hostile changes in control of the
company.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee of the Board is currently comprised of Messrs. Rothe and Menkes. None of the
present or former members of the Compensation Committee were at any time during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2002 or at any other time one of our officers or employees.

None of our executive officers serves as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any

entity that has one or more executive officers serving as a member of our Board of Directors or Compensation
Committee.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

As of December 31, 2002
(@ (b) (©
Securities
Weighted- remaining available
average for future issuance
Securities to be exercise under equity
issued upon exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding outstandin (excluding securities
Plan Category options g options reflected in column(a))
Equity compensation plans approved
2,607,958 §$ 2.69 266,275
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders (2) 453515 $ 3.28 44,610

Total 3,061,473 § 2.78 310,885

(1) Represents shares authorized for issuance under the 1994 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan. The Board of
Directors has further resolved that, contingent upon approval of Company stockholders of the 2003 Optika Inc.
Equity Incentive Plan, no further issuances will be made under the 1994 Stock Option/Stock Issuance Plan.
See “Proposal Two — Approval of the 2003 Optika Inc. Equity Incentive Plan” contained within this Proxy
Statement, for a description of the terms of the 2003 Optika Inc. Equity Incentive Plan.

(2) Represents shares authorized for issuance under the 2000 Non-Officer Stock incentive Plan.
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COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT
Overview and Philesophy

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the "Committee”) is responsible for establishing the
base salary and incentive cash bonus programs for the company's executive officers and other key employees and
administering certain other compensation programs for such individuals, subject in each instance to review by the full »:
Board. The Compensation Committee also has the exclusive responsibility for the administration of the company's
stock plans under which stock option grants may be made to executive officers and other key employees. ke

It is the Committee's objective that executive compeﬁsation be directly influenced by the company's business
results. Accordingly, the company's executive compensation program is structured to stimulate and reward exceptional
performance that results in enhanced corporate and stockholder values.

The Committee recognizes that the industry sector in which the company operates is extremely competitive
world-wide, with the result that there is substantial demand for high-caliber, seasoned executives. It is crucial that the
company be assured of retaining and rewarding its executive personnel essential in contributing to the attainment of the
company's performance goals. For these reasons, the Committee believes the company's executive compensation
arrangements must remain competitive with those offered by other companies of similar magnitude, complexity and
performance records. : :

Cash Compensation

.A key objective of the company's executive compensation program is to position its key executives to earn
annual cash compensation (base salary plus incentive compensation) equaling or exceeding that which the executive
would earn at other similarly situated companies. The Committee, however, did not rely upon any specific
compensation surveys for comparative compensation purposes. Instead, the Committee made its decisions as to the
appropriate market level of base salary for each executive officer on the basis of its understanding of the salary levels in
effect for similar positions at those companies with which the company competes for executive talent. Base salaries
will be reviewed on an annual basis, and adjustments will be made in accordance with the factors indicated above. The
Committee ensures, however, that the higher level of compensation is paid only when profitable growth rates occur.

Base salaries for the named executive officers are established considering a number of factors, including the
company's sustained growth and increased profit margins, the executive's performance and contribution to overall
company performance, and the salary levels of comparable positions at companies of a similar size and in a similar
industry sector. The Committee adheres to a compensation philosophy of moderate levels of fixed compensation such
as base salary. Base salary decisions are made as part of a formal review process.

Stock Options

The Committee grants stock options under the company’s applicable stock plans to foster executive ownership
and to provide direct linkage with stockholder interests. The Commuittee considers the executive's current level of
equity holdings in the company, the stock options previously granted to that individual, industry practices, the
executive's accountability level, and assumed, potential stock value when determining stock option grants. The
Comumittee relies upon competitive guideline ranges of retention-effective, target gain objectives to be derived from
option gains based upon relatively aggressive assumptions relating to planned growth and earnings. In this manner, the
potential executive gains parallel those of other stockholders over the long-term. Therefore, the stock option program
serves as the company's only long-term incentive and retention tool for executives and other key employees. The
option shares vest in increments over a period of years as the officers remain in the company's employ, and the exercise
prices of the stock options granted to the named executive officers are equal to the market value of the stock on the date
of grant. Therefore, stock options provide an incentive to executives to continiue with the company and maximize the
company's profitable growth which ordinarily, over time, should be reflected in the price of the company's stock.
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Benefits

The company provides benefits to the named executive officers that are generally available to other executives
in the peer group companies. The amount of such executive-level benefits and perquisites, as determined in accordance
with the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to executive compensation, did not, for any
exécutive officer, exceed 10% of his total salary and bonus for fiscal 2002. The Committee believes, based upon the
review of industry practices and published benefits surveys, that the company's officers receive approximately average
benefit levels when compared to the peer group companies.

Chief Executive Officer Performance and Compensation

In setting Mr. Ruport's base salary of $240,000 the Committee took note of the company's progress in its
transition plan and continued to structure his compensation package so that more of his total compensation would be
tied to the company's attainment of specific operating objectives. : :

Compliance with Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m)

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, enacted in 1993, generally disallows a tax deduction to publicly
held companies for compensation exceeding $1 million paid to certain of the corporation's executive officers. The
compensation paid to the company's executive officers for the 2002 fiscal year did not exceed the $1 million limit per
officer, nor is it expected that the compensation to be paid to the company's executive officers for fiscal 2003 will -
exceed that limit. The company's stock plans are structured so that any compensation deemed paid to an executive
officer when he exercises an outstanding option under the plans with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of
the option shares on the grant date will qualify as performance-based compensation which will not be subject to the $1
million limitation. Because it is very unlikely that the cash compensation payable to any of the company's executive
officers in the foreseeable future will approach the $1 million limit, the Compensation Committee has decided at this
time not to take any other action to limit or restructure the elements of cash compensation payable to the company's
executive officers. The Compensation Committee will reconsider this decision should the individual compensation of
any executive officer ever approach the $1 million level.-

It is the opinion of the Committee that the adopted executive compensation policies and plans provide the
necessary total remuneration program to properly align the company's performance and the interests of the Company's
stockholders with competitive and equitable executive compensation in a balanced and reasonable manner, for both the
short- and long-term. '

The Compensation Committee of the Board

Alan B. Menkes
James T. Rothe, Ph.D.

25




AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Board of Directors has adopted a written audit committee charter which was attached to the proxy
statement for our 2001 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has (1) reviewed and discussed the audited financial
statements with management, (2) discussed with KPMG LLP, its independent accountants, the matters required to
be discussed by the Statement on Auditing Standards 61 (Codification of Statements on Accounting Standards)
which includes, among other items, matters related to the conduct of the audit of the company’s financial
statements, (3) received the written disclosures and the letter from KPMG LLP required by Independence Standards
Board No.1 (which relates to the accountant’s independence from the company and its related entities) and have
discussed their independence from the company and (4) we have also considered whether the provision of those
services set forth in the table below is compatible with KPMG LLP maintaining its independence from the
company.

Based upon the review and discussions referred to above, we recommended to the Board of Directors that
the company’s audited financial statements be included in the company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2002. We have also recommended to the Board that, subject to stockholder
approval, KPMG LLP be appointed as our independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2003.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Charles P. Schneider
Alan B. Menkes
James T. Rothe

AUDIT FEES
The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed by KPMG LLP for the following services during fiscal 2002:
DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES FEE AMOUNT
Audit fees (1) $ 74,037
Audit related fees $ 750
Tax compliance and consulting $ 23125
Total § 097910

(1) Represents the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the company’s annual
financial statements during fiscal 2002 and for the review of the financial statements included in the company’s
quarterly reports during such period.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below compares the cumulative total stockholder returns on the common stock against the
cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Stock Market Index and the Nadsaq Computer and Data Processing Index for the
period from January 1, 1998 to December 31, 2002.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return (1)(2)
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) The graph assumes that $100 was invested on January 1, 1998 in our common stock and in each index, and
that all dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends have been declared on our common stock.
3] Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder

returns.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in any of our previous filings made under the Securities Act
of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 that might incorporate future filings made by us under those statutes,
neither the preceding Stock Performance Graph nor the Compensation Committee Report is to be incorporated by
reference, in whole or in part, into any such prior filings, nor shall such graph or report be incorporated by reference
into any future filings made by us under those statutes.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors, our executive officers and
persons who hold more than 10% of our outstanding common stock to file reports with respect to their ownership of the
common stock and their transactions in such common stock. Based solely upon a review of the copies of such reports
furnished to us and written representations received from one or more of such persons, we believe that such persons
complied with all their reporting requirements under Section 16(a) for the 2002 fiscal year.

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws provide for indemnification of
our directors, our officers and certain agents. Each of our current directors and executive officers have entered into
separate indemnification agreements with us.

OTHER MATTERS

We know of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the meeting, other than those specified
in the Notice of Annual Meeting. If any other matters properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of
the persons named in the enclosed form-of proxy to vote the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may
recommend. Discretionary authority with respect to such other matters is granted by the execution of the enclosed
proxy.
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STOCKHOLDERS' PROPOSALS FOR 2004 ANNUAL MEETING

Stockholders are entitled to present proposals for action at stockholders” meetings if they comply with the
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. In connection with this year’s meeting, no stockholder proposals
were presented. Any proposals intended to be presented at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held in the
year 2004 must be received at our offices on or before December 4, 2003, to be considered for inclusion in our
proxy statement and form of proxy relating to such meeting.

If a stockholder intends to submit a proposal at our 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which proposal
is not intended to be included in our proxy statement and form of proxy relating to such meeting, the stockholder
must give proper notice no later than February 17, 2004. If a stockholder fails to submit the proposal by such date,
we will not be required to provide any information about the nature of the proposal in our T proxy statement and the
proposal will not be considered at the 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

All notices of proposals by stockholders, whether or not to be included in our proxy materials, should be
sent to Mr. Steven M. Johnson, Corporate Secretary, at our pr1n01pa1 executive offices located at 7450 Campus
Drive, 2nd Floor, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920.

ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K AND ANNUAL REPORT TO STOCKHOLDERS

A copy of our Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 has been mailed concurrently with
this proxy statement to all stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting. We filed an Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002 with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Stockholders
may obtain a copy of this report, without charge, by writing to Mr. Steven M. Johnson, Corporate Secretary, at
our principal offices located at 7450 Campus Drive, 2" Floor, Colorado Springs, Colorado 80920.

NOTICE TO BANKS, BROKER DEALERS AND VOTING TRUSTEES AND THEIR NOMINEES

Please advise us whether other persons are the beneficial owners of the shares for which proxies are being
solicited from you, and, if so, the number of copies of this proxy statement and other soliciting materials you wish
to receive in order to supply copies to the beneficial owners of the shares.

DELIVERY OF VOTING MATERIALS

To reduce the expenses of delivering duplicate voting materials to our stockholders, we are taking
advantage of new householding rules that permit us to deliver only one set of voting materials, meaning the proxy
statement and our 2002 annual report, to stockholders who share the same address unless otherwise requested. Each
stockholder will receive a separate proxy card or voting instruction form and will therefore retain a separate right to
vote on all matters presented at the meeting.

If you share an address with another stockholder and have received only one set of voting materials, you
may write or call us to request a separate copy of these materials at no cost to you. For future annual meetings, you
may request separate voting materials or request that we only send one set of voting materials to you if you are
receiving multiple copies by calling us at (719) 548-9800 or by writing to Mr. Steven M. Johnson, Corporate
Secretary, at our principal executive offices located at 7450 Campus Drive, 2nd Floor, Colorado Springs, Colorado
80920.

Dated: April 2, 2003

The Board of Directors of Optika Inc.
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OPTIKA INC. 2003 EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

SECTION 1
BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

1.1 Background and Effective Date. The Plan permits the grant of Nonqualified Stock Options, Incentive
Stock Options, SARs, Restricted Stock, Performance Units, and Performance Shares. The Plan shall be effective as

of May 8, 2003, subject to and contingent upon its approval by an affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of
the Shares that are present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the 2003 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of
the Company.

1.2 Purpose of the Plan. The Plan is intended to attract, motivate, and retain (a) employees of the
Company and its Affiliates, (b) consultants who provide significant services to the Company and its Affiliates, and
(c) directors of the Company who are employees of neither the Company nor any Affiliate. The Plan also is
designed to encourage stock ownership by Participants, thereby aligning their interests with those of the Company’s
shareholders and to permit the payment of compensation that qualifies as performance-based compensation under
section 162(m) of the Code.

SECTION 2
DEFINITIONS

The following words and phrases shall have the following meanings unless a different meaning is plainly
required by the context:

2.1 “1934 Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Reference to a specific section of
the 1934 Act or regulation thereunder shall include such section or regulation, any valid regulation promulgated
under such section, and any comparable provision of any future legislation or regulation amending, supplementing
or superseding such section or regulation.

2.2 “Affiliate” means any corporation or any other entity (including, but not limited to, partnerships and
joint ventures) controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Company.

2.3 “Award” means, individually or collectively, a grant under the Plan of Nonqualified Stock Options,
Incentive Stock Options, SARs, Restricted Stock, Performance Units, or Performance Shares.

2.4 “Award Agreement” means the written agreement setting forth the terms and provisions applicable to
each Award granted under the Plan.

2.5 “Board” or “Board of Directors” means the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.6 “Cash Flow” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s cash generated
from operating activities, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2.7 “Change in Control” means the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) Any “person” (as such term is used in Sections 13{(d) and 14(d) of the Exchange Act) becomes the
“beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 of the Exchange Act), directly or indirectly, of securities of the
Company representing fifty percent (50%) or more of the total voting power represented by the Company’s then
outstanding voting securities;

(b) The consummation of the sale or disposition by the Company of all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets;

(c) A change in the composition of the Board occurring within a two-year period, as a result of which
fewer than a majority of the directors are Incumbent Directors. “Incumbent Directors” means directors who either
(A) are Directors as of the effective date of the Plan, or (B) are elected, or nominated for election, to the Board with
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the affirmative votes of at least a majority of the Directors at the time of such election or nomination (but will not
include an individual whose election or nomination is in connection with an actual or threatened proxy contest
relating to the election of directors to the Company); or

(d) The consummation of a merger or consolidation of the Company with any other corporation, other
than a merger or consolidation which would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately
prior thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of
the surviving entity or its parent) at least fifty percent (50%) of the total voting power represented by the voting
securities of the Company or such surviving entity or its parent outstanding immediately after such merger or
consolidation.

2.8 “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Reference to a specific section of the
Code or regulation thereunder shall include such section or regulation, any valid regulation promulgated under such
section, and any comparable provision of any future legislation or regulation amending, supplementing or
superseding such section or regulation.

2.9 .“Committee” means the committee appointed by the Board (pursuant to Section 3.1) to administer the
Plan. - :

2.10 “Company” means Optika Inc., a Delaware corporation, or any successor thereto.

2.11 “Consnltant” means any consultant, independent contractor, or other person who provides significant
services to the Company or its Affiliates, but who is neither an Employee nor a Director.

2.12  “Director” means any individual who is a member of the Board of Directors of the Company.

2.13  “Disability” means that an individual is permanently unable to carry out the responsibilities and
functions of the position held by such individual by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental
impairment, or as otherwise determined in accordance with uniform and nondiscriminatory standards adopted by
the Committee from time to time. An individual will not be considered to have incurred a Disability unless he or
she furnishes proof of such impairment sufficient to satisfy the Committee in its discretion.

2.14 Eamnings Per Share” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s Profit
After Tax, divided by a weighted average number of common shares outstanding and dilutive common equivalent
shares deemed outstanding, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2.15 “Employee” means any employee of the Company or of an Affiliate, whether such employee is so
employed at the time the Plan is adopted or becomes so employed subsequent to the adoption of the Plan.

2.16 “Exchange Program” means a program established by the Committee whereby outstanding Awards are
amended to provide for a lower Exercise Price or surrendered or cancelled in exchange for (a) Awards with a lower
Exercise Price, (b) a different type of Award, (c) cash, or (d) a combination of (a), (b) and/or (c).

2.17 “Exercise Price” means the price at which a Share may be purchased by a Participant pursuant to the
exercise of an Option.

2.18 “Fair Market Value” means the last quoted per share selling price for Shares on the relevant date, or if
there were no sales on such date, the closing bid on the relevant date. If there are neither bids nor sales on the
relevant date then Fair Market Value shall mean the arithmetic mean of the highest and lowest quoted selling prices
on the nearest day before and the nearest day after the relevant date, as determined by the Committee.
Notwithstanding the preceding, for federal, state, and local income tax reporting purposes, fair market value shall be
determined by the Committee (or its delegate) in accordance with uniform and nondiscriminatory standards adopted
by it from time to time.

2.19 “Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Company.
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220 “Grant Date” means, with respect to an Award, the date that the Award was approved by the
Committee or a later date specified by the Committee.

2.21 “Incentive Stock Option” means an Option to purchase Shares which is designated as an Incentive
Stock Option and is intended to meet the requirements of Section 422 of the Code.

2.22 “Individual Objectives” means quantifiable objectives determined by the Committee that will measure
the individual’s performance of his or her overall duties to the Company which may include the release of software
products and measures related to long-term strategic plans.

2.23  “Market Share” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s percentage of
a market segment with respect to a product.

2.24 “Misconduct” means, at any time within (a) the term of an Option granted hereunder, (b) within one (1)
year after a Participant’s Termination of Service, or (c) within one (1) year after exercise of any portion of an
Option granted hereunder, whichever is the latest, the commission of any act in competition with any activity of the
Company (or any Affiliate) or any act contrary or harmful to the interests of the Company (or any Affiliate),
including, but not limited to: (a) conviction of a felony or crime involving moral turpitude or dishonesty, (b)
violation of Company (or any Affiliate) policies, (c) accepting employment with or serving as a consultant, advisor

-or-in.any other capacity to-an-entity that is in competition with or acting against the interests of the Company (er any -~

Affiliate), including employing or recruiting any present, former or future employee of the Company (or any
Affiliate), (d) misuse of any trade or business secrets or confidential, secret, privileged, or non-public information
relating to the Company’s (or any Affiliate’s) business or breach of the Company’s Confidentiality Agreement, or
(e) participating in a hostile takeover attempt of the Company. The foregoing definition shall not be deemed to be
inclusive of all acts or omissions that the Company (or any Affiliate) may consider as Misconduct for purposes of
the Plan.

2.25 “Naonemployee Director” means a Director who is an employee of neither the Company nor of any
Affiliate.

2.26 “Nonqualified Stock Option” means an option to purchase Shares which is not intended to be an
Incentive Stock Option.

2.27 “QOperating Margin” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s revenue
less operating expenses, divided by revenue determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

2.28 “Option” means an Incentive Stock Option or a Nonqualified Stock Option.

2.29 “Participant” means an Employee, Consultant, or Nonemployee Director who has an outstanding
Award. ' '

2.30 “Performance Goals” means the goal(s) (or combined goal(s)) determined by the Committee (in its
discretion) to be applicable to a Participant with respect to an Award. As determined by the Committee, the
Performance Goals applicable to an Award may provide for a targeted level or levels of achievement using one or
more of the following measures: (a) Earnings per Share, (b) Profit After Tax, (c) Profit Before Tax, (d) Return on
Capital, (e) Return on Equity, (f) Return on Sales, (g) Revenue, (h) Total Shareholder Return, (i) Market Share, (j)
“Cash Flow, (k) Operating Margin, and (1) Individual Objectives. The Performance Goals may differ from
Participant to Participant and from Award to Award. Prior to the Determination Date, the Committee shall
determine whether any significant element(s) shall be included in or excluded from the calculation of any
Performance Goal with respect to any Participants.

231 “Performance Share” means an Award granted to a Participant pursuant to Section 8.
2.32 “Performance Unit” means an Award granted to a Participant pursuant to Section 8.
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2.33 “Period of Restriction” means the period during which the transfer of Shares of Restricted Stock are
subject to restrictions and therefore, the Shares are subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. As provided in Section
7, such restrictions may be based on the passage of time, the achievement of target levels of performance, or the
occurrence of other events as determined by the Committee, in its discretion.

2.34 “Plan” means the Optika Inc. 2003 Equity Incentive Plan, as set forth in this instrument and as
hereafter amended from time to time.

2.35 “Profit After Tax” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s net income
after taxes, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2.36 Profit Before Tax” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s net
income before taxes, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2.37 “Restricted Stock” means an Award granted to a Participant pursuant to Section 7.

2.38 “Retirement” means, in the case of an Employee or a Nonemployee Director a Termination of Service
occurring on or after age sixty-five (65). With respect to a Consultant, no Termination of Service shall be deemed to
be on account of “Retirement.”

2.39 “Return_on Capital” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or a business unit’s Profit
After Tax divided by Company’s or business unit’s, as applicable, average invested capital, determined in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

240 “Retumn on Equity” means as to any Performance Period, the percentage equal to the Company’s Profit
After Tax divided by average stockholder’s equity, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. .

2.41 “Return on Sales” means as to any Performance Period, the percentage equal to the Company’s or a
business unit’s Profit After Tax, divided by the Company’s or the business unit’s, as applicable, Revenue,
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

242 “Revenue” means as to any Performance Period, the Company’s or business unit’s net fees generated
from third parties and recognized as revenue in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

2.43 *“Rule 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the 1934 Act, and any future regulation amending,
supplementing or superseding such regulation.

244 “Section 16 Person” means a person who, with respect to the Shares, is subject to Section 16 of the
1934 Act. : S ’ -

2.45  “Shares” means the shares of common stock of the Company.

2.46 - “Stock Appreciation Right” or “SAR” means an Award, granted alone or in connection with a related
Option, that pursuant to Section 6 is designated as an SAR.

2.47 “Subsidiary” means any corporation in an unbroken chain of corporations beginning with the Company
if each of the corporations other than the last corporation in the unbroken chain then owns stock possessing fifty
percent (50%) or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock in one of the other corporations in
such chain.

2,48 “Target Award” means the target award payable under the Plan to a Participant for the Performance
Period, expressed as a percentage of his or her Base Salary or a specific dollar amount, as determined by the
Committee in accordance with Section 3.




2.49 “Termination of Service” means (a) in the case of an Employee, a cessation of the employee-employer
relationship between the Employee and the Company or an Affiliate for any reason, including, but not by way of
limitation, a termination by resignation, discharge, death, Disability, Retirement, or the disaffiliation of an Affiliate,
but excluding any such termination where there is a simultaneous reemployment by the Company or an Affiliate; (b)
in the case of a Consultant, a cessation of the service relationship between the Consultant and the Company or an
Affiliate for any reason, including, but not by way of limitation, a termination by resignation, discharge, death,
Disability, or the disaffiliation of an Affiliate, but excluding any such termination where there is a simultaneous re-
engagement of the consultant by the Company or an Affiliate; and (c) in the case of a Nonemployee Director, a
cessation of the Director’s service on the Board for any reason, including, but not by way of limitation, a
termination by resignation, death, Disability, Retirement or non-reelection to the Board.

2.50 “Total Shareholder Return” means as to any Performance Period, the total return (change in share price
plus reinvestment of any dividends) of a Share.

SECTION 3
ADMINISTRATION

3.1 The Committee. The Plan shall be administered by the Committee. The Committee shall consist of not
less than two (2) Directors who shall be appointed from time to time by, and shall serve at the pleasure of, the Board
of Directors. The Committee shall be comprised solely of Directors who both are (a) “non-employee directors”
under Rule 16b-3, and (b) “outside directors” under Section 162(m) of the Code.

3.2 Authority of the Committee. It shall be the duty of the Committee to administer the Plan in accordance
with the Plan’s provisions. The Committee shall have all powers and discretion necessary or appropriate to
administer the Plan and to control its operation, including, but not limited to, the power to (a) determine which
Employees and Consultants shall be granted Awards, (b) prescribe the terms and conditions of the Awards, (c)
interpret the Plan and the Awards, (d) adopt such procedures and subplans as are necessary or appropriate to permit
participation in the Plan by Employees, Consultants and Directors who are foreign nationals or employed outside of
the United States, () adopt rules for the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan as are consistent
therewith, (f) effect, at any time and from time to time, an Exchange Program, and (g) interpret, amend or revoke
any such rules. o '

3.3 Delegation by the Committee. The Committee, in its sole discretion and on such terms and conditions
as it may provide, may delegate all or any part of its authority and powers under the Plan to one or more Directors
or officers of the Company; provided, however, that the Committee may not delegate its authority and powers (a)
with respect to Section 16 Persons, or (b) in any way which would jeopardize the Plan’s qualification under Section
162(m) of the Code or Rule 16b-3.

3.4 Decisions Binding. All determinations and decisions made by the Committee, the Board, and any
delegate of the Committee pursuant to the provisions of the Plan shall be final, conclusive, and binding on all
persons, and shall be given the maximum deference permitted by law.

SECTION 4
SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN

4.1 Number of Shares. Subject to adjustment as provided in Section 4.3, the total number of Shares
available for grant under the Plan shall not exceed 2,000,000, plus an annual increase to be added on the first day of
the Company’s fiscal year (beginning on the first day of the Company’s 2004 fiscal year and ending on the first day
of the Company’s 2013 fiscal year, equal to the lesser of (i) 5% of the outstanding Shares on the immediately
preceding date, or (ii) an amount determined by the Board. Shares granted under the Plan may be either authorized
but unissued Shares or treasury Shares.

4.2 Lapsed Awards. If an Award is settled in cash, or is cancelled, terminates, expires, or lapses for any
reason (with the exception of the termination of a tandem SAR upon exercise of the related Option, or the
termination of a related Option upon exercise of the corresponding tandem SAR), any Shares subject to such Award
again shall be available to be the subject of an Award.
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4.3 Adjustments in Awards and Authorized Shares. In the event that any dividend or other distribution

(whether in the form of cash, Shares, other securities, or other property), recapitalization, stock split, reverse stock
split, reorganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase, or exchange of Shares or
other securities of the Company, or other change in the corporate structure of the Company affecting the Shares
such that an adjustment is determined by the Committee (in its sole discretion) to be appropriate in order to prevent
dilution or enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan, then the
Committee shall, in such manner as it may deem equitable, adjust the number and class of Shares which may be
delivered under the Plan, the number and class of Shares which may be added annually to the Shares reserved under
the Plan, the number, class, and price of Shares subject to outstanding Awards, and the numerical limits of Sections
5.1, 6.1, 7.1, 8.1 and 9.1. Notwithstanding the preceding, the number of Shares subject to any Award always shall
be a whole number.

SECTION 5
STOCK OPTIONS

5.1 Grant of Options. Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, Options may be granted to
Employees and Consultants at any time and from time to time as determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.
The Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine the number of Shares subject to each Option, provided that
during any Fiscal Year, no Participant shall be granted Options covering more than 500,000 Shares.
Notwithstanding the foregoing limitation, in connection with a Participant’s initial service as an Employee, an
Employee may be granted Options to purchase up to an additional 500,000 Shares. The Committee may grant
Incentive Stock Options, Nonqualified Stock Options, or a combination thereof.

5.2 Award Agreement. Each Option shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the
Exercise Price, the expiration date of the Option, the number of Shares to which the Option pertains, any conditions
to exercise of the Option, and such other terms and conditions as the Committee, in its discretion, shall determine.
The Award Agreement shall also specify whether the Option is intended to be an Incentive Stock Option or a
Nongqualified Stock Option.

5.3 Exercise Price. Subject to the provisions of this Section 5.3, the Exercise Price for each Option shall
be determined by the Committee in its sole discretion.

5.3.1 Nongqualified Stock Options. Unless otherwise qualified under 162(m) of the Code as

“performance based compensation,” in the case of a Nonqualified Stock Option intended to qualify as “performance
based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code, the Exercise Price shall be not less than
one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the Grant Date.

5.3.2 Incentive Stock Options. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option, the Exercise Price shall be
not less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the Grant Date; provided,
however, that if on the Grant Date, the Employee (together with persons whose stock ownership is attributed to the
Employee pursuant to Section 424(d) of the Code) owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total combined
voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, the Exercise Price shall be not less
than one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share on the Grant Date.

5.3.3 Substitute Options. Notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 5.3.1 and 5.3.2, in the event
that the Company or an Affiliate consummates a transaction described in Section 424(a) of the Code (e.g., the
acquisition of property or stock from an unrelated corporation), persons who become Employees or Consultants on
account of such transaction may be granted Options in substitution for options granted by their former employer. If
such substitute Options are granted, the Committee, in its sole discretion and consistent with Section 424(a) of the
Code, may determine that such substitute Options shall have an exercise price less than one hundred percent (100%)
of the Fair Market Value of the Shares on the Grant Date.
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5.4 Expiration of Options.

5.4.1 Expiration Dates. Each Option shall terminate no later than the first to occur of the following
events:

(a) The date for termination of the Option set forth in the written Award Agreement; or
(b) The expiration of ten (10) years from the Grant Date; or

(¢) Upon the commission of any Misconduct by a Part1c1pant as determmed by the Comm1ttee
in its sole discretion.

5.42 Death of Participant. Notwithstanding Section 5.4.1, if a Participant dies prior to the expiration
of his or her Options, the Committee, in its discretion, may prov1de that hlS or her Options shall be exercisable for
up to three (3) years after the date of death. : »

5.4.3 Committee Discretion. Subject to the limits of Sections 5.4.1 and 5.4.2, the Committee, in its
sole discretion, (a) shall provide in each Award Agreement when each Option expires and becomes unexercisable,
and (b) may, after an Option is granted, extend the maximum term of the Option (subject to Section 5.8.4 regardlng
Incentive Stock Options).

5.5 Exercisability of Options. Options granted under the Plan shall be exercisable at such times and be
subject to such restrictions and conditions as the Committee shall determine in its sole discretion. After an Option is
granted, the Committee, in its sole discretion, may accelerate the exercisability of the Option.

5.6 Payment. Options shall be exercised by the Participant’s delivery of a written notice of exercise to the
Secretary of the Company (or its designee), setting forth the number of Shares with respect to which the Option is to
be exercised, accompanied by full payment for the Shares. Upon the exercise of any Option, the Exercise Price shall
be payable to the Company in full in cash or its equivalent. The Committee, in its sole discretion, also may permit
exercise (a) by tendering previously acquired Shares having an aggregate Fair Market Value at the time of exercise
equal to the total Exercise Price (such previously acquired Shares must have been held for the requisite period
necessary to avoid a charge to the Company’s earnings for financial reporting purposes, unless otherwise
determined by the Committee), or (b) by any other means which the Committee, in its sole discretion, determines to
both provide legal consideration for the Shares, and to be consistent with the purposes of the Plan. As soon as
practicable after receipt of a written notification of exercise and full payment for the Shares purchased, the
Company shall deliver to the Participant (or the Participant’s designated broker), Share certificates (which may be
in book entry form) representing such Shares.

5.7 Restrictions on Share Transferability. The Committee may impose such restrictions on any Shares

acquired pursuant to the exercise of an Option as it may deem advisable, including, but not limited to, restrictions
related to applicable federal securities laws, the requirements of any national securities exchange or system upon
which Shares are then listed or traded, or any blue sky or state securities laws.

58 Certain Additi iSions for Incentive Stock Onfioms,

5.8.1 Exercisability. The aggregate Fair Market Value (determined on the Grant Date(s)) of the
Shares with respect to which Incentive Stock Options are exercisable for the first time by any Employee during any
calendar year (under all plans of the Company and its Subsidiaries) shall not exceed $100,000.

5.8.2 Termination of Service. No Incentive Stock Option may be exercised more than three (3)
months after the Participant’s Termination of Service for any reason other than Disability or death, unless (a) the
Participant dies during such three-month period, and/or (b) the Award Agreement or the Committee permits later
exercise. No Incentive Stock Option may be exercised more than one (1) year after the Participant’s Termination of
Service on account of Disability, unless (a) the Participant dies during such one-year period, and/or (b) the Award
Agreement or the Committee permit later exercise.
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5.8.3 Company and Subsidiaries Only. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to persons who

are employees of the Company or a Subsidiary on the Grant Date.

5.8.4 Expiration. No Incentive Stock Option may be exercised after the expiration of ten (10) years
from the Grant Date; provided, however, that if the Option is granted to an Employee who, together with persons
whose stock ownership is attributed to the Employee pursuant to Section 424(d) of the Code, owns stock possessing
more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of the stock of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, the Option may not be exercised after the expiration of eight (8) years from the Grant Date.

SECTION 6
STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

6.1 Grant of SARs. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Plan, an SAR may be granted to Employees
and Consultants at any time and from time to time as shall be determined by the Commiittee, in its sole discretion.
The Committee may grant Affiliated SARs, Freestanding SARs, Tandem SARs, or any combination thereof.

6.1.1 Number of Shares. The Committee shall have complete discretion to determine the number of
SARs granted to any Participant, provided that during any Fiscal Year, no Participant shall be granted SARs
covering more than 500,000 Shares.

6.1.2 Exercise Price and QOther Terms. The Committee, subject to the provisions of the Plan, shall
have complete discretion to determine the terms and conditions of SARs granted under the Plan. However, the
exercise price of an SAR shall be not Iess than one hundred percent (100%) of the Fair Market Value of a Share on
the Grant Date.

6.2 SAR Agreement. Each SAR grant shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement that shall specify the
exercise price, the term of the SAR, the conditions of exercise, and such other terms and conditions as the
7 Comnlineg, in its sole discretion, shall determine.

6.3 Expiration of SARs. An SAR granted under the Plan shall expire upon the date determined by the
Committee, in its sole discretion, and set forth in the Award Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the rules of
Section 5.4 also shall apply to SARs.

6.4 Payment of SAR Amount. Upon exercise of an SAR, a Participant shall be entitled to receive payment
from the Company an amount determined by multiplying:

(a) The difference between the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date of exercise over the exercise
price; times

(b) The number of Shares with respect to which the SAR is exercised. At the discretion of the
Committee, the payment upon SAR exercise may be in cash, in Shares of equivalent value, or in some combination
thereof.

SECTION 7
RESTRICTED STOCK

7.1 Grant of Restricted Stack. Subject to the terms and provisions of the Plan, the Committee, at any time
and from time to time, may grant Shares of Restricted Stock to Employees and Consultants in such amounts as the
Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine. The Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine the number
of Shares to be granted to each Participant, provided that during any Fiscal Year, no Participant shall receive more
than 500,000 Shares of Restricted Stock.

7.2 Restricted Stock Agreement. Each Award of Restricted Stock shall be evidenced by an Award
Agreement that shall specify the Period of Restriction; the number of Shares granted, and such other terms and
conditions as the Committee, in its sole discretion, shall determine. Unless the Committee determines otherwise,
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Shares of Restricted Stock shall be held by the Company as escrow agent until the restrictions on such Shares have
lapsed. :

7.3 TIransferability. Except as provided in this Section 7, Shares of Restricted Stock may not be sold,
transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypothecated until the end of the applicable Period of
Restriction.

7.4 QOther Restrictions. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may impose such other restrictions on Shares
of Restricted Stock as it may deem advisable or appropriate, in accordance with this Section 7.4.

7.4.1 GQGeneral Restrictions. The Committee may set restrictions based upon the achievement of
specific performance objectives (Company-wide, divisional, or individual), applicable federal or state securities
laws, or any other basis determined by the Committee in its discretion.

7.4.2 Section 162(m) Performance Restrictions. For purposes of qualifying grants of Restricted

Stock as “performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee, in its discretion,
may set restrictions based upon the achievement of Performance Goals. The Performance Goals shall be set by the
Committee on or before the latest date permissible to enable the Restricted Stock to qualify as “performance-based
compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code. In granting Restricted Stock which is intended to qualify under
Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee shall follow any procedures determined by it from time to time to be
necessary or appropriate to ensure qualification of the Restricted Stock under Section 162(m) of the Code (e.g., in
determining the Performance Goals).

743 Legend on Certificates. The Committee, in its discretion, may legend the certificates
representing Restricted Stock to give appropriate notice of such restrictions.

7.5 Removal of Restrictions. Except as otherwise provided in this Section 7, Shares of Restricted Stock
covered by each Restricted Stock grant made under the Plan shall be released from escrow as soon as practicable
after the last day of the Period of Restriction. The Committee, in its discretion, may accelerate the time at which any
restrictions shall lapse or be removed. After the restrictions have lapsed, the Participant shall be entitled to have any
legend or legends under Section 7.4.3 removed from his or her Share certificate, and the Shares shall be freely
transferable by the Participant.

7.6 Yoting Rights. During the Period of Restriction, Participants holding Shares of Restricted Stock
granted hereunder may exercise full voting rights with respect to those Shares, unless the Committee determines
otherwise.

7.7 Dividends and Other Distributions. During the Period of Restriction, Participants holding Shares of
Restricted Stock shall be entitled to receive all dividends and other distributions paid with respect to such Shares
unless otherwise provided in the Award Agreement. If any such dividends or distributions are paid in Shares, the
Shares shall be subject to the same restrictions on transferability and forfeitability as the Shares of Restricted Stock
with respect to which they were paid.

7.8 Return of Restricted Stock to Company. On the date set forth in the Award Agreement, the Restricted

Stock for which restrictions have not lapsed shall revert to the Company and again shall become available for grant
under the Plan.

SECTION 8
PERFORMANCE UNITS AND PERFORMANCE SHARES

8.1 Grant of Performance Ilnits/Shares. Performance Units and Performance Shares may be granted to
Employees and Consultants at any time and from time to time, as shall be determined by the Committee, in its sole
discretion. The Committee shall have complete discretion in determining the number of Performance Units and
Performance Shares granted to each Participant provided that during any Fiscal Year, (a) no Participant shall receive
Performance Units having an initial value greater than $2,000,000, and (b) no Partlclpant shall receive more than
500,000 Performance Shares.
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8.2 Value of Performance Units/Shares. Each Performance Unit shall have an initial value that is
established by the Committee on or before the Grant Date. Each Performance Share shall have an initial value equal
to the Fair Market Value of a Share on the Grant Date.

8.3 Performance Objectives and Other Terms. The Committee shall set performance objectives in its

discretion which, depending on the extent to which they are met, will determine the number or value of Performance
Units/Shares that will be paid out to the Participants. The time period during which the performance objectives must
be met shall be called the “Performance Period.” Each Award of Performance Units/Shares shall be evidenced by an
Award Agreement that shall specify the Performance Period, and such other terms and conditions as the Committee,
in its sole discretion, shall determine.

8.3.1 @General Performance Objectives. The Committee may set performance objectives based upon

the achievement of Company-wide, divisional, or individual goals, applicable federal or state securities laws, or any
other basis determined by the Committee in its discretion.

8.3.2 Section 162(m) Performance Objectives. For purposes of qualifying grants of Performance

Units/Shares as “performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code, the Committee, in its
discretion, may determine that the performance objectives applicable to Performance Units/Shares shall be based on
the achievement of Performance Goals. The Performance Goals shall be set by the Committee on or before the latest
date permissible to enable the Performance Units/Shares to qualify as “performance-based compensation” under
Section 162(m) of the Code. In granting Performance Units/Shares which are intended to qualify under Section
162(m) of the Code, the Committee shall follow any procedures determined by it from time to time to be necessary
or appropriate to ensure qualification of the Performance Units/Shares under Section 162(m) of the Code (e.g., in
determining the Performance Goals).

8.4 Eaming of Performance Units/Shares. After the applicable Performance Period has ended, the holder

of Performance Units/Shares shall be entitled to receive a payout of the number of Performance Units/Shares earned
by the Participant over the Performance Period, to be determined as a function of the extent to which the
corresponding performance objectives have been achieved. After the grant of a Performance Unit/Share, the
Committee, in its sole discretion, may reduce or waive any performance objectives for such Performance
Unit/Share.

85 Form and Timing of Payment of Performance Units/Shares. Payment of earned Performance

Units/Shares shall be made as soon as practicable after the expiration of the applicable Performance Period. The
Committee, in its sole discretion, may pay earned Performance Units/Shares in the form of cash, in Shares (which
have an aggregate Fair Market Value equal to the value of the eamed Performance Units/Shares at the close of the
applicable Performance Period) or in a combination thereof.

8.6 Cancellation of Performance Units/Shares. On the date set forth in the Award Agreement, all unearned
or unvested Performance Units/Shares shall be forfeited to the Company, and again shall be available for grant
under the Plan.

SECTION 9
NONEMPLOYEE DIRECTOR OPTIONS

The provisions of this Section 9 are applicable only to Options granted to Nonemployee Directors. The
provisions of Section 5 are applicable to Options granted to Employees and Consultants (and to the extent provided
in Section 9.2.7, to Options granted to Nonemployee Directors).

9.1 Granting of Options.

9.1.1 Initial Grants. Each Nonemployee Director who first becomes a Nonemployee Director on or
after the effective date of this Plan, automatically shall receive, as of the date that the individual first is appointed or
elected as a Nonemployee Director, an Option to purchase 30,000 Shares.
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9.1.2 Qngoing Grants. Each Nonemployee Director who both (a) is a Nonemployee Director on the
date of the Company’s Annual Stockholders Meeting, and (b) has served as a Nonemployee Director for at least six
months prior to and including such date automatically shall receive, as of such date, an Option to purchase 2,500
Shares. There shall be no limit on the number of such annual option grants any one Nonemployee Director may
receive over his or her period of Board service.

9.2 Terms of Qptions.

9.2.1 Option Agreement. Each Option granted pursuant to this Section 9 shall be evidenced by a
written Award Agreement between the Participant and the Company.

9.2.2 Exercise Price. The Exercise Price for the Shares subject to each Option granted pursuant to
this Section 9 shall be 100% of the Fair Market Value of such Shares on the Grant Date.

9.2.3 Exercisahility.

(a) Each Option granted pursuant to Section 9.1.1 shall become exercisable as to twenty five

percent (25%) of the Shares on the first anniversary of the Grant Date, and as to twenty five percent (25%) of the
Shares on each successive one year anniversary of the Grant Date thereafter, so that the Option shall be 100%
vested on the fourth anniversary of the Grant Date.

(b) Each Option granted pursuant to Section 9.1.2 shall become fully exercisable on the first
anniversary of the Grant Date.

(¢) Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Section 9.2.3, the Committee or the Board,
in their sole discretion, may accelerate the exercisability of the Options granted pursuant to this Section 9.

(d) Notwithstanding any contrary provision of this Section 9.2.3, once a Participant ceases to be
a Director, his or her Options which are not then exercisable shall never become exercisable and shall be
immediately forfeited, except to the limited extent provided in Section 9.2.5.

9.2.4 Expiration of Options. Each Option granted pursuant to this Section 9 shall terminate upon the
first to occur of the following events:

(a) The expiration of ten (10) years from the Grant Date; or

(b) The expiration of three (3) months from the date of the Participant’s Termination of Service
for any reason other than the Participant’s death, Disability or Retirement; or

(c¢) The expiration of one (1) year from the date of the Participant’s Termination of Service by
reason of Disability or Retirement; or

(d) Upon the commission of any Misconduct by the Participant, as determined by the
Committee in its sole discretion.

9.2.5 Death of Participant. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9.2.4, if a Participant dies
prior to the expiration of his or her Options in accordance with Section 9.2.4, then (a) one hundred percent (100%)
of the Shares covered by his or her Options shall immediately become one hundred percent (100%) exercisable, and
(b) his or her Options shall terminate one (1) year after the date of his or her death.

9.2.6 Not Incentive Stock Options. Options granted pursuant to this Section 9 shall not be

designated as Incentive Stock Options.

9.2.7 Qther Terms. All provisions of the Plan not inconsistent with this Section 9 shall apply to
Options granted to Nonemployee Directors. ’
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9.2.8 Substimte Options. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 9.2.2, in the event that the
Company or an Affiliate consummates a transaction described in section 424(a) of the Code (e.g., the acquisition of
property or stock from an unrelated corporation), persons who become Non-employee Directors on account of such
transaction may be granted Options in substitution for options granted by their former employer. If such substitute
Options are granted, the Committee, in its sole discretion and consistent with section 424(a) of the Code, shall
determine the exercise price of such substitute Options.

9.3 Elections hy Nonemployee Directors. Pursuant to such procedures as the Committee (in its discretion)

may adopt from time to time, each Nonemployee Director may elect to forego receipt of all or a portion of any
annual retainer, committee fees and meeting fees otherwise due to the Nonemployee Director in exchange for
Restricted Stock or Options. The number of Shares of Restricted Stock received by any Nonemployee Director shall
equal the amount of foregone compensation divided by the Fair Market Value of a Share on the date the
compensation otherwise would have been paid to the Nonemployee Director, rounded up to the nearest whole
number of Shares. The number of Options granted shall be determined by dividing the cash amount foregone by an
option pricing model determined by the Committee (e.g., Black-Scholes), rounded up to the nearest whole number
of Shares. The procedures adopted by the Committee for elections under this Section 9.3 shall be designed to ensure
that any such election by a Nonemployee Director will not disqualify him or her as a “non-employee director” under
Rule 16b-3.

SECTION 10
MISCELLANEOUS

10.1 Change in Control.
10.1.1 Options and SARs.

(a) In the event of a Change in Control, each outstanding Option and SAR shall be assumed or
an equivalent option or right substituted by the successor corporation or a parent or Subsidiary of the successor
corporation.

(b) In the event that the successor corporation refuses to assume or substitute for the Option or
SAR, then the Options and SARs held by such Participant shall become one hundred percent (100%) exercisable. If
an Option or SAR becomes fully vested and exercisable in lieu of assumption or substitution in the event of a
Change in Control, the Company shall notify the Participant in writing or electronically that the Option or SAR
shall be fully vested and exercisable (subject to the consummation of the Change in Control) for a period of fifteen
(15) days from the date of such notice, and the Option or SAR shall terminate upon the expiration of such period.

(c) For the purposes of this Section 10.1.1, the Option or SAR shall be considered assumed if,
following the Change in Control, the option or right confers the right to purchase or receive, for each Share subject
to the Option or SAR immediately prior to the Change in Control, the consideration (whether stock, cash, or other
securities or property) received in the Change in Control by holders of Shares for each Share held on the effective
date of the transaction (and if holders were offered a choice of consideration, the type of consideration chosen by
the holders of a majority of the outstanding Shares); provided, however, that if such consideration received in the
Change in Control is not solely common stock of the successor corporation or its parent, the Committee or the
Board may, with the consent of the successor corporation, provide for the consideration to be received upon the
exercise of the Option or SAR, for each Share subject to the Option or SAR, to be solely common stock of the
successor corporation or its parent equal in fair market value to the per share consideration received by holders of
Shares in the Change in Control, as determined on the date of the Change in Control.

(d) With respect to Options and SARs that are assumed or substituted for, if within eighteen
(18) months following the Change in Control the Participant incurs a Termination of Service due to involuntary
termination by the successor corporation or one of its affiliates for a reason other than Misconduct, then the Options
and SARs held by such Participant shall become one hundred percent (100%) exercisable. For purposes of this
Section 10.1.1, a Participant shall be deemed to have been involuntary terminated following a Change in Control
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upon (i) such Participant’s involuntary dismissal or discharge by the Company for reasons other than Misconduct,
or (ii) such Participant’s voluntary resignation following (A) a change in his or her position with the Company
which materially reduces his or her duties and responsibilities or the level of management to which he or she
reports, (B) a reduction in his or her level of compensation (including base salary, fringe benefits and target bonus
under any corporate-performance based bonus or incentive programs) by more than fifteen percent (15%) or (C) a
relocation of such individual’s place of employment by more than fifty (50) miles, provided and only if such
change, reduction or relocation is effected by the Company without the individual’s consent.

10.1.2 Restricted Stock.

(a) In the event of a Change in Control, any Company repurchase or reacquisition right with
respect to outstanding Shares of Restricted Stock held by the Participant will be assigned to the successor
corporation. In the event that the successor corporation refuses to accept the assignment of any such Company
repurchase or reacquisition right, such Company repurchase or reacquisition right will lapse and the Participant will
become one hundred percent (100%) vested in such Shares of Restricted Stock immediately prior to the Change in
Control.

(b) If the Company repurchase or reacquisition right with respect to a Share of Restricted Stock
is assigned to the successor corporation and, within eighteen (18) months following the Change in Control, the
Participant incurs a Termination of Service due to involuntary termination by the successor corporation or one of its
affiliates for a reason other than Misconduct, then such Participant’s Shares of Restricted Stock (or the property for
which the Restricted Stock was converted upon the Change in Control) will immediately have any Company
repurchase or reacquisition right lapse and the Participant will become one hundred percent (100%) vested in such
Shares of Restricted Stock (or the property for which the Restricted Stock was converted upon the Change in
Control).

10.1.3 Performance Shares and Performance Units. In the event of a Change in Control, the
Committee or the Board, in its discretion, may provide for any one or more of the following with respect to the
Performance Shares and Units: (a) any outstanding Performance Shares and Units shall be assumed by the successor
corporation or a parent or Subsidiary of the successor corporation, (b) any outstanding Performance Shares and
Units shall be terminated immediately prior to the Change in Control, or (c) with respect to a Change in Control that
occurs prior to a Participant’s Termination of Service, one hundred percent (100%) of any outstanding Performance
Shares or Units shall be deemed to be earned and shall be immediately payable to the Participant, or, in cases where
a Participant has received a target award of Performance Units or Shares, one hundred percent (100%) of the target
amount shall vest. In the event any outstanding Performance Shares and Units are assumed, the successor
corporation shall have the ability to reasonably and equitably adjust the Performance Goals.

10.2 Deferrals. The Committee, in its sole discretion, may permit a Participant to defer receipt of the
payment of cash or the delivery of Shares that would otherwise be due to such Participant under an Award. Any
such deferral elections shall be subject to such rules and procedures as shall be determined by the Committee in its
sole discretion.

10.3 No Effect on Employment or Service. Nothing in the Plan shall interfere with or limit in any way the

right of the Company to terminate any Participant’s employment or service at any time, with or without cause. For
purposes of the Plan, transfer of employment of a Participant between the Company and any one of its Affiliates (or
between Affiliates) shall not be deemed a Termination of Service. Employment with the Company and its Affiliates
is on an at-will basis only.

104 Participation. No Employee or Consultant shall have the right to be selected to receive an Award
under this Plan, or, having been so selected, to be selected to receive a future Award.

10.5 Indemnification. Each person who is or shall have been a member of the Committee, or of the Board,
shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company against and from (a) any loss, cost, liability, or expense that
may be imposed upon or reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with or resulting from any claim, action,
suit, or proceeding to which he or she may be a party or in which he or she may be involved by reason of any action
taken or failure to act under the Plan or any Award Agreement, and (b) from any and all amounts paid by him or her
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in settlement thereof, with the Company’s approval, or paid by him or her in satisfaction of any judgment in any
such claim, action, suit, or proceeding against him or her, provided he or she shall give the Company an
opportunity, at its own expense, to handle and defend the same before he or she undertakes to handle and defend it
on his or her own behalf. The foregoing right of indemnification shall not be exclusive of any other rights of
indemnification to which such persons may be entitled under the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws,
by contract, as a matter of law, or otherwise, or under any power that the Company may have to indemnify them or
hold them harmless.

10.6 Successors. All obligations of the Company under the Plan, with respect to Awards granted
hereunder, shall be binding on any successor to the Company, whether the existence of such successor is the result
of a direct or indirect purchase, merger, consolidation, or otherwise, of all or substantially all of the business or
assets of the Company. »

10.7 Beneficiary Designations. If permitted by the Committee, a Participant under the Plan may name a
beneficiary or beneficiaries to whom any vested but unpaid Award shall be paid in the event of the Participant’s
death. Each such designation shall revoke all prior designations by the Participant and shall be effective only if
given in a form and manner acceptable to the Committee. In the absence of any such designation, any vested
benefits remaining unpaid at the Participant’s death shall be paid to the Participant’s estate and, subject to the terms
of the Plan and of the applicable Award Agreement, any unexercised vested Award may be exercised by the
administrator or executor of the Participant’s estate.

10.8 Limited Transferability of Awards. No Award granted under the Plan may be sold, transferred,

pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypothecated, other than by will, by the laws of descent and
distribution, or to the limited extent provided in Section 10.7. All rights with respect to an Award granted to a
Participant shall be available during his or her lifetime only to the Participant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Participant may, in a manner specified by the Committee, (a) transfer a Nonqualified Stock Option to a Participant’s
spouse, former spouse or dependent pursuant to a court-approved domestic relations order which relates to the
provision of child support, alimony payments or marital property rights, and (b) transfer a Nonqualified Stock
Option by bona fide gift and not for any consideration, to (i) a member or members of the Participant’s immediate
family, (ii) a trust established for the exclusive benefit of the Participant and/or member(s) of the Participant’s
immediate family, (iii) a partnership, limited liability company of other entity whose only partners or members are
the Participant and/or member(s) of the Participant’s immediate family, or (iv) a foundation in which the Participant
an/or member(s) of the Participant’s immediate family control the management of the foundation’s assets.

10.9 No Rights as Stockholder. Except to the limited extent provided in Sections 7.6 and 7.7, no
Participant (nor any beneficiary) shall have any of the rights or privileges of a stockholder of the Company with

respect to any Shares issuable pursuant to an Award (or exercise thereof), unless and until certificates representing
such Shares shall have been issued, recorded on the records of the Company or its transfer agents or registrars, and
delivered to the Participant (or beneficiary).

SECTION 11
AMENDMENT, TERMINATION, AND DURATION

11.1 Amendment, Suspension, or Termination. The Board, in its sole discretion, may amend, suspend or

terminate the Plan, or any part thereof, at any time and for any reason. The amendment, suspension, or termination
of the Plan shall not, without the consent of the Participant, alter or impair any rights or obligations under any
Award theretofore granted to such Participant. No Award may be granted during any period of suspension or after
termination of the Plan.

11.2  Duration of the Plan. The Plan shall be effective upon the date and subject to the conditions set forth
in Section 1.1, and subject to Section 11.1 (regarding the Board’s right to amend or terminate the Plan), shall remain
in effect thereafter. However, without further stockholder approval, no Incentive Stock Option may be granted
under the Plan after the tenth anniversary of its effective date.
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SECTION 12
TAX WITHHOLDING

12.1 Withholding Requirements. Prior to the delivery of any Shares or cash pursuant to an Award (or
exercise thereof), the Company shall have the power and the right to deduct or withhold, or require a Participant to

remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy federal, state, and local taxes (including the Participant’s
FICA obligation) required to be withheld with respect to such Award (or exercise thereof).

12.2 Withholding Arrangements. The Committee, in its sole discretion and pursuant to such procedures as
it may specify from time to time, may permit a Participant to satisfy such tax withholding obligation, in whole or in
part by (a) electing to have the Company withhold otherwise deliverable Shares, or (b) delivering to the Company
already-owned Shares having a Fair Market Value equal to the minimum amount required to be withheld.

SECTION 13
LEGAL CONSTRUCTION

13.1 Gender and Number. Except where otherwise indicated by the context, any masculine term used
herein also shall include the feminine; the plural shall include the singular and the singular shall include the plural.

13.2 Severability. In the event any provision of the Plan shail be held illegal or invalid for any reason, the
illegality or invalidity shall not affect the remaining parts of the Plan, and the Plan shall be construed and enforced
as if the illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

13.3 Requirements of Law. The granting of Awards and the issuance of Shares under the Plan shall be
subject to all applicable laws, rules, and regulations, and to such approvals by any governmental agencies or
national securities exchanges as may be required.

134 Securities Law Compliance. With respect to Section 16 Persons, transactions under this Plan are
intended to comply with all applicable conditions of Rule 16b-3. To the extent any provision of the Plan, Award
Agreement or action by the Committee fails to so comply, it shall be deemed null and void, to the extent permitted
by law and deemed advisable by the Committee. .

13.5 Governing T.aw. The Plan and all Award Agreements shall be construed in accordance with and
governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.

13.6 Captions. Captions are provided herein for convenience only, and shall not serve as a basis for
interpretation or construction of the Plan.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” included in this Report. The consolidated statement of operations data for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 and the consolidated balance sheet data at December 31, 2002
and 2001, are derived from the audited consolidated financial statements included in this Report. The consolidated
statement of operations data for the two years ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, and the consolidated balance
sheet data at December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, are derived from audited consolidated financial statements not

included in this Report.

Consolidated Statement of Operations:
Revenues:
LICENSES evvvirevrreceeeisieerctenmcereaetess st b es e s s tneearssnaesrese et eranes
Maintenance and other.........occcviiieririerecnenreeneeee e
TOtAl FEVEIUES ....ccverrrivreereer et ereveatesessesa s esessene e saennsen
Cost of revenues:
LACEIBES covuvvecrierrcetrcinaaes s s e raeassevcaesennssssbamsbansasss s b enesensens
Maintenance and Other........oocommevcrsrinrrerssiesssss e ssierseansennns
Total COSt Of FEVENUES ...cc.veemitrrrrreee e menneees
GIOSS PrOfit....c.cuiiiiiciiiiicieiie et
Operating expenses:
Sales and MArketing ......c.coovvvvernireeercrieeee e cerecereceraens
Research and development...........o.oocvirieceenccncncnirnecenee
General and administrative ......c..ccovevicenincenceecennern e
Restructuring and other charges ..........cccocevevevcrcrcniecnrnnan
Total Operating eXPEnSes. ......ocevvrerrceenrrenrseereeeensirerecrmenees
Loss from operations........
Other INCOME ....oveverereceecree s

Loss before income tax expense (benefit)
Income tax expense (Benefit)......c.oovvvirienrinnenicincnenenecnens
NEE 0SS ..cmcereeereeerre et et st st sees s neeanens
Preferred stock dividend............o.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Accretion of preferred stock and beneficial conversion feature
Increase to income available to common stockholders from

the conversion of preferred stock............ccooeviviiiiiviinnnnns.
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders.........

Basic net income (loss) per common share ...........cccccoeeiieeinne
Basic weighted average number of common
shares OUIStANAINgG .......c.oooevviiriiiiiiiiin e

Diluted net loss per common share
Diluted weighted average number of common shares
OULSEANAING ....ooovviiiircicer e

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments ..........c........
Working capital.......cocoveeerrvieiccri e
TOtAl ASSELS ..veviirreeeeenicini et rre s rer e eaa et e en
Redeemable convertible preferred stock.........ccoerrervervininniae
Total stockholders’ equity ......cooccceecninienevc i

ARS-2

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 5,655 8 6,306 $ 5,241 § 11,457 § 11,128
12,218 10.354 10,865 10,585 7.537

17.873 16.660 16,106 22,042 18,665
575 873 562 821 434
3.674 3.669 4.961 4,224 3392

4,249 4.542 5,523 5.045 3.826
13.624 12,118 10.583 16,997 14,839
7,533 8,198 13,672 10,963 12,972

5,128 5,591 8,434 5,635 5,332
1,612 1,792 2,392 1,997 2,714

- 1.071 - - 425

14,273 16,652 24498 18,595 21.443
(649) (4,534) (13,915) (1,598) (6,604)

128 368 832 300 218
(521) (4,166) (13,063) (1,298) (6,386)
3 8 2.978 (454) (1.276)
(518) (4,174) (16,041) (844) (5,110)
-- (447) (1,037) - -
-- (250) (5,027) - -
- 6,196 - - --
$ (518) $, 1325 % (22,105) § (844) § (5,110)
$ (0.06) § 0.16 $ 2.78) $ 0.12) § 0.73)
8,292 8,184 7,948 7,192 6,989
$ (0.06) $ (0.46) $ (2.78) § 0.12) § (0.73)
8,292 8,984 7,948 7,192 6,989
December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(in thousands)

8,408 $ 7,696 $ 11,704 § 7,182 % 7,811

5,860 5,762 8,512 5,737 6,176

13,889 13,901 18,524 18,097 18,537

- - 10,849 - -

6,988 7,395 769 11,356 11,820




MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Overview

Optika® Inc. is a leading enterprise content management (ECM) provider of imaging, workflow, collaboration
and records management software. Optika’s Acorde family of ECM software solutions, including Acorde
Context™, Acorde Process™, Acorde Resolve™, Acorde Application Link and Acorde Records Manager™, allows
companies to manage complex business processes and transactions efficiently and effectively leverage their
enterprise resource planning (ERP) and line-of-business (LOB) systems. Acorde provides the ability to access and
store multiple formats of business content, both digital and non-digital; automate processes across the organization
and externally with partners and customers; and enable online collaboration around these paper-intensive or
complex processes in real and near time. Built on a three-tier, scalable and extensible platform, Acorde delivers a
variety of client desktops, including Windows and Web and easily integrates with third-party applications such as
ERP systems. The Acorde product family allows organizations to improve processing efficiency, reduce operating
costs and increase customer and partner service and satisfaction, resulting in significant return on investment.

Background

Over the past few years, companies have felt increasing pressure to deliver process efficiency and service
improvements. These companies have attempted to optimize core transaction processes to respond to competition,
enhance service to customers and vendors and improve their operating margins. Qur goal is to answer this
marketplace need and make organizations more efficient by decreasing the cost of business transactions and their
associated cycle-times and increasing the productivity of their workforces.

We are able to achieve this goal by leveraging and integrating ERP and other critical LOB applications with
context and process solutions, and extending them outside the organization with collaboration tools. By doing this,
we help our customers leverage the strategic investments they have made in business systems, reduce their cost of
operations, and provide security for their critical business documents. This not only has a large favorable impact on
the financial aspects of our customers’ businesses, but it also helps our customers increase vendor and customer
satisfaction.

We are able to achieve these benefits for organizations that have high volumes of transactions as well as those
that have the need to manage and store data and documents in multiple formats in a variety of locations throughout
their organizations.

Business drivers are those factors that compel a customer to look for a solution such as Optika’s Acorde to
satisfy their business requirements. Business drivers are often described by chief financial officers, chief
information officers and business managers as follows:

e Increase process and transaction efficiency. This need is defined in terms of lowered costs of doing
business and generating higher levels of service. This especially applies to processes that have high
transaction volumes along with content and supporting documents beyond the transaction itself.

e  Reduce transaction cycle times. Time is money and the ability to process transactions in an expedited
fashion is imperative. Due to the enormous costs involved, this is particularly important when dealing
with transactions that are out of tolerance or need to be addressed in a unique fashion.

e Reduce operating expenses. Many organizations are facing limited or stagnant growth. When
shareholder value cannot be enhanced by growing revenues, it becomes necessary to focus on improving
business processes to drive down costs and improve profit margins.

o Accomplish the same amount of work with fewer people or more work with the same number of people.
Obviously, this goal cannot be achieved without an improvement in business process management.

e  Control the proliferation of paper. Some companies are virtually drowning in a sea of paper and need to
evolve to electronic methods to speed processes and reduce storage requirements. This is not only a cost
imperative, but a security imperative as well.

e Manage multiple sources of business data. It is not unusual to find companies where the transaction data
needs to be supported by documents and data from several additional systems. The task of managing this
data and the multiple systems that contain it can be daunting.
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e Protect critical business assets — corporate information. Organizations in every industry must protect
corporate information through records management. Factors driving companies to deploy a records
management strategy include:

o Litigation

Risk Management

Mergers & Acquisitions

Globalization

Security

Privacy

Public and Private Sector Access Policies

O 0O 0O O 0 0o

Another important business driver is the increasing focus on integrating an organization’s key business
partners, such as vendors and customers, into the organization’s traditional business processes. Although e-business
was initially thought of as a revolutionary way to market, sell and purchase goods and services, the industry is now
realizing the even greater potential of e-business in changing the way businesses work with their supply chain
partners as well as provide information and interaction for employees, customers and partners. Therefore,
companies must now find ways to not only manage their electronic and paper-intensive transactions more
efficiently, but to involve each constituency by extending enterprise applications to remote users via the Internet.
We believe that collaborative tools, Web services and portals are emerging as key components in any organization’s
strategic technology plan. By providing solutions that enable more efficient processes, seamless integration with
existing infrastructures and interaction among all related participants, we are delivering operational savings
throughout the back-office.

Optika Acorde

The Acorde product family is changing the way organizations process, fulfill and support business
transactions through the following solutions:

Acorde Context

To efficiently conduct business transactions, both between internal departments and externally with vendors
and customers, businesses need immediate access to all relevant transaction information, regardless of how it is
executed. Acorde Context enables companies to securely capture, store, retrieve and display transaction documents
and information, regardless of source or type. Acorde Context can manage both paper and electronic documents, as
well as electronic (COLD) reports, and provide seamless integration to a company’s critical LOB applications.
Acorde Context allows organizations to increase user productivity and improve information sharing across the
enterprise.

Acorde Process

Many companies have pared resources to the point that they have driven employees to a level of frustration
that few deem tolerable. Corporate executives and stockholders consistently want more: more revenues, more
profitability and "more with less" from all departments. To help organizations achieve operational efficiency and
cost savings, Optika provides Acorde Process, sophisticated workflow technology for automating processes and
delivering business transaction information within the enterprise and over the Web to external users. Acorde
Process-helps organizations process. more transactions with fewer resources, resulting in more effective back-office
operations and significantly enhanced transaction efficiency.

Acorde Resolve

Analyst reports show that approximately 11% of organizations' business transactions have problems or
discrepancies, such as short shipments, quantity mismatches and substitutions. The resolution of these failures
typically requires time-intensive, manual processes involving research and approval on a number of levels within
multiple organizations. In addition, the cost to process these problem transactions is nearly equal to the cost to
process all transactions that complete successfully. Acorde Resolve allows businesses to build collaboration hubs,
which deliver interactive tools in a virtual office environment, for resolving and collaborating around transactions
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‘and their inherent discrepancies internally and with trading partners. As a result, companies can more efficiently
resolve transaction issues to cut costs and improve relationships with key customers and vendors.

Acorde Application Link

Leveraging industry standards and providing a variety of client desktops, Acorde also enables companies to
integrate with LOB and third party applications such as ERP systems. With pre-built integrations for J.D. Edwards
OneWorld, WorldSoftware, XE and ERP §8; Oracle E-Business Suite; Microsoft Business Solutions and PeopleSoft,
Optika delivers a seamless way to extend the functionality of these enterprise business applications with minimal
implementation time and effort. Acorde Application Link also allows organizations to seamlessly integrate with any
existing infrastructure or system, enabling them to cost-effectively take advantage of and leverage the investments
they have already made in their crucial business systems.

Acorde Records Manager

Due to recent corporate financial scandals, Sarbanes-Oxley legislation and many new SEC regulations, records
management is a crucial issue for many companies. Optika’s Acorde Records Manager responds to this critical need
by enabling the identification, classification, tracking and management of all forms of information from inception
through destruction or archival. With Acorde Records Manager, companies can achieve legal compliance with the
maintenance and destruction of business records.

Operations

The license of our software products is typically an executive-level decision by prospective end-users and
generally requires our sales staff and/or our Advantage Partners (APs) to engage in a lengthy and complex sales
cycle (typically between six and twelve months from the initial contact date). We distribute our products through a
direct sales force and a network of APs. For 2002, approximately 48% of our license revenues were derived from
our APs and the remaining license fees were derived from direct sales. However, no individual customer accounted
for more than 10% of our total revenues. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, we generated
approximately 9%, 12% and 15%, respectively, of our total revenues from international sales. Our revenues consist
primarily of license revenues, which are comprised of one-time fees for the license of our products, service
revenues, and maintenance revenues, which are comprised of fees for upgrades and technical support. Our APs,
which are responsible for the installation and integration of the software for their customers, enter into sales
agreements with the end-user, and license software directly from us. We license software directly to the end-user
through-software license agreements. Annual maintenance agreements are also entered into between the APs and the
end-user, and the APs then purchase maintenance services directly from us. For 2002 and 2001, approximately 32%
and 38%, respectively, of our total revenues were derived from software licenses and approximately 43% of our
total revenues were derived from maintenance agreements. For 2002 and 2001, other revenues, which are comprised
of training, consulting and implementation services, and third-party hardware and software products, accounted for
25% and 19%, respectively, of our total revenues.

Critical Accounting Policies

This section discusses our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires
us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period.

On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates and judgments, including those related to revenue
recognition, income taxes, bad debts, restructuring charges, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates and
judgments on historical experience, forecasts and on various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions. We believe that the following critical accounting policies affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.
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Revenue Recognition

We earn our revenue primarily from software licenses and related service. Our revenue is recognized in
accordance with Statement of Position 97-2 (SOP 97-2), as amended by Statement of Position 98-9. For sales made
either through our APs or by us, we generally recognize license revenue upon shipment when a non-cancelable
license agreement has been signed or a purchase order has been received, delivery has occurred, the fee is fixed or
determinable and collectibility is probable. The license fees are not assumed to be fixed or determinable if the fees
are due more than 12 months after delivery or are based on achievement of a milestone. Where applicable, fees
from multiple element arrangements are unbundled and recorded as revenue as the elements are delivered to the
extent that vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value exists for the various elements. We establish
VSOE of fair value on maintenance and professional services elements based on prices charged when the same
elements are sold in separate transactions. We have not established VSOE on license elements. Revenue on
undelivered and delivered elements is recorded using the residual method in accordance with SOP 97-2, as
amended.

Software maintenance revenues are deferred and recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is
generally one year. The unrecognized portion of software maintenance revenues is recorded in the accompanying
balance sheets as deferred revenue. Other revenues are recognized as services are performed.

We generally do not grant rights to return products, except for defects in the performance of the products
relative to specifications and pursuant to standard industry shrink-wrapped license agreements which provide for a
30-day right of return if an end-user does not accept the terms of the shrink-wrapped license agreements. The 30-
day right of return begins upon product shipment. Our software license agreements generally do not provide price
adjustments or rotation rights. We generally include a 90-day limited warranty with the software license, which -
entitles the end-user to corrections for documented program errors.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We have recorded a valuation allowance against our carryforward tax benefits to the extent that we believe that
it is more likely than not all of such benefits will not be realized in the near term. We perform our assessment of
benefit realization and the associated valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. Our assessment of this valuation
allowance was made using all available evidence, both positive and negative. In particular we considered both our
historical results and our projections of profitability for only reasonably foreseeable future periods. Our realization
of the recorded net deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable income and therefore, we cannot be assured
that such benefits will be realized. Based on management’s current projections, we will continue to evaluate
releasing a portion of the valuation allowance over the next year if planned operating results are achieved.

Accounting for Preferred Stock

In 2000 we completed the sale of 731,851 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, and warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 307,298 shares of our common stock to an investor group consisting principally of
Thomas Weisel Capital Partners and affiliated entities for an aggregate purchase price-of $1.5.million. The preferred-. -
stock was subject to mandatory redemption provisions on the eighth anniversary of the issuance for cash equal to
the stated liquidation preference plus accumulated unpaid dividends. The preferred stock was convertible to
common stock at the holder’s option based upon the conversion formula as defined in the preferred stock Certificate
of Designation. The $15 million in gross proceeds received was allocated as follows: approximately $5.5 million
for the preferred stock, approximately $4.4 million for the beneficial conversion feature, and approximately $5.1
million for the warrants. The initial carrying amount of the preferred stock was increased by periodic accretions so
that the carrying amount would have been equal to the redemption amount ($15 million) at the redemption date in
2008. The periodic increases in the carrying amount were effected by charges against additional paid in capital. As
the preferred stock was convertible into common stock at any time, the beneficial conversion amount was accreted
in its entirety at the date of issuance of the preferred stock. The warrants were to expire in 2008 and as of May 7,
2001 no warrants were exercised. The fair value of the warrants was separately recorded as warrants for the
purchase of our common stock and as a reduction to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.
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On May 7, 2001, we entered into an Exchange Agreement with Thomas Weisel Capital Partners L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership, certain of its affiliates and RKB Capital, L.P. (the "Purchasers") pursuant to which we
have issued Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, having the terms and provisions set forth in the Certificate of
Designation designating the Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, on a one-for-one basis, in return for the
exchange, surrender and cancellation of the Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock. The Series A-1
Preferred issued in exchange for the Series A Preferred is substantially identical to the Series A Preferred. The
Series A-1 Preferred contains certain changes from the Series A which include eliminating the dividend and
redemption requirements and modifying the protective and liquidation provisions thereof. In connection with this
transaction, we also purchased the warrants associated with the Series A Preferred for an aggregate of $0.01. The
Series A-1 Preferred is convertible to common stock at the holders’ option based upon the conversion formula as
defined in the Certificate of Designation. Upon the occurrence of a change of control event, such as a sale of assets
or merger in which the consideration to be received consists solely of stock , the holders of the Series A-1 Preferred
Stock are entitled to receive the greater of (i) a liquidation preference of approximately $22.5 million in stock or (ii)
the amount of stock they would have otherwise received upon conversion to common stock, prior to any distribution
to the holders of our common stock. Upon the occurrence of any change of control event which includes a cash
component, the holders of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock are entitled to convert their shares into enough common
shares to enable them to receive at least $22.5 million in cash following such conversion. The holders of the Series
A-1 Preferred must approve any stock or cash based change of control event in which they would not receive at
least $22.5 million in the form of a liquid security, provided that in the event that the holders of the Series A-1
Preferred stock elect not to approve a change of control event, we have the option of repurchasing the Series A-1
Preferred Stock for $22.5 million and proceeding with the transaction. As of February 23, 2003 the conversion
formula was 1.5 shares of common for every share of preferred.

The Series A-1 Preferred was recorded in stockholders’ equity at its fair value. The difference between the
carrying value of the Series A Preferred at the time of the exchange and the fair value of the Series A-1 Preferred of
- $5.35 million (as determined by an independent valuation) was recorded as an increase in additional paid-in capital
and as a one-time adjustment to net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders. As a result of the Exchange
Agreement, future periods will not have adjustments to income for accumulating dividends or allocations of the
discounts associated with the Series A Preferred Stock.

Accounting for Restructuring Activities

During February 2001, we reduced our workforce by approximately 25%. This reduction in force resulted in
approximately $1.1 million of restructuring charges to earnings in the first quarter of 2001; primarily to cover
severance and severance related costs. We realized both expense savings and reduced cash outflows during fiscal
year 2001 from the reduction in salary costs, office space and related overhead expenses as a result of the
restructuring plan.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2001
Revernues

Total revenues increased 7% to $17.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, from $16.7 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001.

Licenses. License revenues decreased 10% to $5.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, from $6.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2001, representing approximately 32% and 38% respectively, of total
revenues for the applicable period. The decrease in license revenues during the year ended December 31, 2002
from December 31, 2001 is primarily due to decreases in sales made by APs in North America as a result of the
sluggish economy. License revenues generated outside of the United States decreased to approximately 10% of
license revenues for the year ended December 31, 2002, from approximately 13% of license revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2001. This decrease is attributable to decreased European license revenue in 2002,

Maintenance and Other. Maintenance revenues, exclusive of other revenues, increased to $7.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002, from approximately $7.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2001,
representing approximately 43% of total revenues for the years ending December 31, 2002 and 2001. This absolute
dollar annual increase was primarily a result of the maintenance revenues received from new customers and the
impact of an overall pricing increase implemented at the beginning of 2002. Other revenue, consisting primarily of
consulting services and training, represented 25% and 19% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively. The increase in other revenue as a percentage of total revenue was primarily due to
increased consulting, project management and implementation services resulting from our strong direct license
revenue in 2002.

Cost of Revenues . e

Licenses. Cost of licenses consists primarily of royalty payments to third-party software vendors and costs of
product media, duplication, packaging and fulfillment. Cost of licenses decreased to $575,000, or 10% of license
revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002, from $873,000, or 14% of license revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2001, primarily as a result of the decreased license revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001
and the elimination of certain fixed third party royalty payments associated with our Acorde Resolve product during
the year ended December 31, 2001.

Maintenance and Other. Cost of maintenance and other consists of the direct and indirect costs of providing
software maintenance and support, training and consulting services, to our APs and end-users. Cost of maintenance
and other remained flat at $3.7 million, or 30% of maintenance and other revenues, for the year ended December 31,
2002, from $3.7 million, or 35% of maintenance and other revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. Cost
of maintenance and other decreased as a percentage of maintenance and other revenue as a result of flat internal
costs to fulfill increased maintenance and other revenue in 2002. '

Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, commissions and other -
related expenses for sales and marketing personnel, marketing, advertising, and promotional expenses. Sales and
marketing expenses decreased to $7.5 million, or 42% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002,
from $8.2 million, or 49% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease in sales and
marketing expenses is due to our restructuring activities in February 2001. We currently anticipate that sales and
marketing expenses are likely to increase in absolute dollars in the foreseeable future as we invest in our ability to
grow revenue.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and other
related expenses for research and development personnel, and the cost of facilities and equipment. Research and
development expenses decreased in absolute dollars to $5.1 million, or 29% of total revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2002, from $5.6 million, or 34% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. The
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decrease in research and development is primarily the result of restructuring activities in February 2001. We
currently anticipate that our research and development costs are expected to remain flat in the foreseeable future.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and other
related expenses of administrative, executive and financial personnel, and outside professional fees. General and
administrative expenses decreased to $1.6 million, or 9% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2002,
from $1.8 million, or 11% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease in general and
administrative costs primarily is the result of the restructuring activities in February 2001. General and
administrative expenses are expected to remain flat in the foreseeable future.

Other income. Other income consists primarily of interest due to our investing activities. We recognized
other income, net of $128,000 during the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to other income of $368,000
during the year ended December 31,2001. The decrease is due to generally lower interest rate returns on our
invested balances.

Income Tax Expense. We have recorded a valuation allowance against our carryforward tax benefits to the
extent that we believe that it is more likely than not all of such benefits will not be realized in the near term. We
perform our assessment of benefit realization and the associated valuation allowance on a quarterly basis. Our
assessment of this valuation allowance was made using all available evidence, both positive and negative. In
particular we considered both our historical results and our projections of profitability for only reasonably
foreseeable future periods. Our realization of the recorded net deferred tax assets is dependent on future taxable
income and therefore, we cannot be assured that such benefits will be realized. Based on management’s current
projections, we will continue to evaluate releasing a portion of the valuation allowance over the next year if planned
operating results are achieved.

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2000
Revenues

Total revenues increased 3% to $16.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, from $16.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000.

Licenses. License revenues increased 20% to $6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, from $5.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2000, representing approximately 38% and 33%, respectively, of total
revenues for the applicable period. The increase in license revenue is attributable to an overall increased demand
for our products. License revenues generated outside of the United States decreased to approximately 13% of
license revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001, from approximately 22% of license revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2000. This decrease is attributable to increased United States license revenue in 2001.

Maintenance and Other. Maintenance revenues, exclusive of other revenues, decreased 4%, to $7.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2001, from approximately $7.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2000,
representing approximately 43% of total revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001, and 46% of total revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2000 . This absolute dollar decrease was primarily a result of the discontinued
maintenance contracts from FilePower (predecessor product to Acorde) customers that elected to discontinue
maintenance. This decrease was partially offset by maintenance contracts from new accounts. Other revenue,
consisting primarily of consulting services and training, represented 19% and 21% of total revenue for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The decrease in other revenues as a percentage of total revenues
was primarily due to other revenues remaining stable while total license revenues increased in fiscal year 2001.

Cost of Revenues

Licenses. Cost of licenses consists primarily of royalty payments to third-party software vendors and costs of
product media, duplication, packaging and fulfillment. Cost of licenses increased to $873,000, or 14% of license
revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001, from $562,000, or 11% of license revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2000, primarily as a result of the increased license revenue during the period and the increase of third
party royalty payments during the year ended December 31, 2001.
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Maintenance and Other. Cost of maintenance and other consists of the direct and indirect costs of providing
software maintenance and support, training and consulting services, to our APs and end-users. Cost of maintenance
and other decreased to $3.7 million, or 35% of maintenance and other revenues, for the year ended December 31,
2001, from $5.0 million, or 46% of maintenance and other revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2000. The
decrease as a percentage of maintenance and other revenues is primarily a result of the decrease in allocated
overhead expenditures and the reductien of our Solution Services group resulting from the reorganization performed
in the first quarter of 2001.

Operating Expenses

Sales and Marketing. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries, commissions and other
related expenses for sales and marketing personnel, marketing, advertising, and promotional expenses. Sales and
marketing expenses decreased to $8.2 million, or 49% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001,
from $13.7 million, or 85% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2000. This decrease in sales and
marketing is primarily attributable to the decrease in our direct sales and marketing organizations in early 2001.

Research and Development. Research and development expenses consist primarily of salaries and other
related expenses for research and development personnel, and the cost of facilities and equipment. Research and
development expenses decreased in absolute dollars to $5.6 million, or 34% of total revenues, for the year ended
December 31, 2001, from $8.4 million, or 52% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2000. The
decrease in research and development expenses in 2001 was due to a reduction in headcount, contractors and related
expenses.

General and Administrative. General and administrative expenses consist primarily of salaries and other
related expenses of administrative, executive and financial personnel, and outside professional fees. General and
administrative expenses decreased to $1.8 million, or 11% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001,
from $2.4 million, or 15% of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease was primarily
due to decreased depreciation and lease costs supporting the decreased headcount in 2001.

Other income. Other income consists primarily of interest due to our investing activities offset by interest
expense. We recognized other income of $368,000 during the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to other
income, net of $852,000 during the year ended December 31, 2000. The decrease is due to generally lower invested
balances and lower interest rates.

Income Tax Expense. In 2001, we recorded a full valuation allowance against our carryforward tax benefits
that were generated in 2001, to the extent that we believe it is more likely than not that all of such benefits will not
be realized in the near term. Our assessment of this valuation allowance was made using all available evidence,
both positive and negative. In particular we considered both our historical results and our projections of
profitability for only reasonably foreseeable future periods.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents, including short-term investments, at December 31, 2002 was $8.4 million,
increasing by approximately $712,000 from December 31, 2001. For the year ended December 31, 2002, net cash
provided by operating activities was $797,000, compared to net cash used in operating activities of $3.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2001. Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2002 is
primarily due to the increase in deferred maintenance revenue associated with our prepaid maintenance contracts,
the non cash effect of depreciation and amortization offset by our net loss and decrease in accrued expenses and
accrued compensation expense. The increase in deferred maintenance revenue is primarily the result of our overall
pricing increase implemented at the beginning of 2002, our growth in our base of annual support contracts resulting
from new customer sales and sales of additional products to the existing base. Additionally, a significant number of
maintenance contracts renew in the fourth quarter and are amortized ratably throughout the following year resulting
in the higher balance in deferred maintenance at December 31. The decrease in accrued expenses and accrued
compensation expense is primarily the result of finalization of the restructuring activities and lower accruals needed
for advertising and royalty expenses on December 31, 2002.
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Cash used in investing activities was $196,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to cash
provided by investing activities of $3.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Cash flows from investing
activities are primarily due to the purchase and sale of marketable securities offset by capital expenditures. Capital
expenditures were $205,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to $30,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001.

Cash provided by financing activities was $111,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. Cash used by
financing activities was $24,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. Cash provided by financing activities in
2002 resulted primarily from the proceeds of sales of common stock through our employee stock purchase and
option plans. '

- At December 31, 2002, our principal sources of liquidity included cash and short-term investments of $8.4
million. In addition, we have a secured credit facility for up to $3.0 million, bearing interest at the bank’s prime
rate. As of December 31, 2002, we had approximately $2.5 million available for borrowing and no debt
outstanding.

As of December 31, 2002, the only significant contractual obligations or commercial commitments consisted
of our facility lease commitments totaling $3.0 million (See Note 4 to the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further details.) We also have a fixed royalty obligation of $100,000 to be paid in 2003. We do not
have any other off-balance sheet arrangement that could significantly reduce our liquidity.

We believe that our current cash and short-term investments, together with anticipated cash flows from our
operations and the availability of our bank credit facility, will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital
expenditure requirements for at least the next 12 months.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for
an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair
value can be made. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In May 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, "Rescission of FASB Statement No. 4, 44, and 64, Amendment
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April 2002," which is effective for certain transactions
occurring after May 15, 2002 and for financial statements issued on or after May 15, 2002. SFAS No. 145 rescinds
SFAS No. 4, "Reporting Gains and Losses from Extinguishment of Debt," and an amendment of that statement,
SFAS No. 64, "Extinguishments of Debt Made to Satisfy Sinking-Fund Requirements."” SFAS No. 145 also rescinds
SFAS No. 44, "Accounting for Intangible Assets of Motor Carriers.” SFAS No. 145 amends SFAS No. 13,
"Accounting for Leases," to eliminate an inconsistency between the required accounting for sale-leaseback
transactions and the required accounting for certain lease modifications that have economic effects that are similar
to sale-leaseback transactions. This statement also amends other existing authoritative pronouncements to make
various technical corrections, clarify meanings, or describe their applicability under changed conditions. The
adoption of SFAS No. 145 on May 15, 2002 did not have a material impact on our consotidated financial
statements.

- In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Exit or Disposal Activities.” This statement
addresses the recognition, measurement, and reporting of costs associated with exit and disposal activities. SFAS
No. 146 is applicable to restructuring activities and costs related to terminating a contract that is not a capital lease
and one time benefit arrangements received by employees who are involuntarily terminated. SFAS 146 supersedes
EITF 94-3, "Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring)." Under SFAS No. 146 the cost associated with an exit or
disposal activity is recognized in the periods in which it is incurred rather than at the date committed to the exit
plan. This statement is effective for exit or disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002 with earlier adoption
encouraged. Previously issued financial statements will not be restated. The provisions of EITF 94-3 shall continue
to apply for exit plans initiated prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 146. Accordingly, the adoption of SFAS No. 146
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will not have a material impact on our financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. The provisions of
SFAS No. 146 could impact the accounting for any future exit and disposal activities, including the period in which
exit costs are recorded.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation—Transition
and Disclosure—as Amendment to FAS 123.” SFAS No. 148 provides two additional transition methods for entities
that adopt the preferable method of accounting for stock based compensation. Further, the statement requires
disclosure of comparable information for all companies regardless of whether, when or how an entity adopts the
preferable, fair value based method of accounting. As we continued to disclose the fair value of stock option
compensation only, SFAS No. 148 did not have any impact on our financial position or results of operations. The
transition and annual disclosures of SFAS No. 148 have been disclosed in Notes 1 and 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As of December 31, 2002 we had $6.0 million in short-term investments that are sensitive to market risks.
Our investment portfolio is used to preserve our capital until it is required to fund operations, including our research
and development activities. We do not own any derivative financial instruments. Due to the nature of our
investment portfolio we are primarily subject to interest rate risk.

Our investment portfolio includes fixed rate debt instruments that are primarily municipal bonds with maturity
periods within one-year. The market value of these bonds is subject to interest rate risk, and could decline in value
if interest rates increase. A hypothetical increase or decrease in market interest rates by 10% from December 31,
2002, would cause the fair market value of these short-term investments to-change by an insignificant amount.-
Although the market value of these short-term investments would change due to the interest rate fluctuation, we
have the ability to hold the investments to maturity, which would reduce overall market risk.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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Optika Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidat‘ved' Balance Sheets

(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31, December 31,
2002 — 2001

Assets
Current assets: _
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS .......ccovvvevrivererveniiirnreir e $ 2,458 $ 1,746
Short-term INVESTMENTS .....c.viiiiiiiviciie ettt e e 5,950 5,950
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $107
and $110 at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively «....coccoevvrenriennencnn 3,796 4,035
Other CUITENT @SSELS....ccviiiiireiereceeceeereee ettt sae et erreerseenresraeseresteen 557 537
TOtal CUITENE ASSELS .vvviieiiiee it eeeeeee e ceeee e reeereaae e e sae e e e s e seeeeaas 12761 _ 12268
Property and equipment, Net........ccccviniiiiieiiiiiiieere e 895 1,364
L0 11 41 g T SO O OO O OOy SO OO U SO 233 269
S 13 8Kk9 $ 13901
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ..vovviiciiiiiiirrier et es et sasasesednes $ 379 $ 486
ACCTUEA EXPOIISES ..vviviececececeirercrtre et ettt e e 523 1,210
Accrued cOMPEnSsation EXPEIISE. .......veeriererierireresiieeerenteneeresreneeressereasessens 853 861
Deferred FEVEIUE ...ooveeiiiiereietere ettt et ettt st aeasaesnnes 5146 3,949
Total current liabilities ......ccccccoveeiieiiiriieec e e ———— 6,901 6,506
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 4, 6, 7 and 10)
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock; $.001 par value; 25,000,000 shares authorized,;
8,326,486 and 8,214,713 shares issued and outstanding at December 31,
2002 and 2001, reSPECIVELY ..ovivirririeeiectieie it er e ettt 8 8
Series A-1 preferred stock; $.001 par value; 731,851 shares authorized,
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2002 and 2001 ...........c.covevervnnn. 5,199 5,199
Additional paid-in Capital ........coeerriririeirircieererre e 29,162 29,051
Accumulated defiCit......cooieiiic s —(27,381) _ (26,863)
Total stockholders' qQUILY ....ccccoovverieieiricn s 6,988 7,395
$ 138890 $ 13901

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Optika Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
Revenues:
LACEIISES 1ovviee et cie sttt ee st ens et s s e evs st s e st baens $ 5655 $§ 6306 § 5241
Maintenance and Other...........cccvvevveieeeree e, 12218 ___ 10354 __ 10,865
TOtal TEVENUES ....cvviveceieceie et e et ens 17873 16,660 16,106
Cost of revenues:
LICEISES «.veineieiriuiietiereresterrrerresieesreasaeesateseeeneeeseenvessessnassenas 575 873 562
Maintenance and Other.......o..ocveevieieevieeniriieecccreere e _ 3674 3,669 4961
Total cost Of TEVENUES ......cvcvvvveirereeieecceni e 4,249 4,542 5,523
GIOSS PIOfit...occciiiiiiiiciiciicieete e e ettt aaas 13,624 12,118 10,583
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing ...........ccocerieiienicenieiineicneneese s vesenne 7,533 8,198 13,672
Research and development.........ccoceeevvreneereceiennncnenneennns 5,128 5,591 8,434
General and adminiStrative .....ccocciveeeciicieeseeeceeeeeeeseevissaneenns 1,612 1,792 2,392
Restructuring and other charges .........ccccoeevereveecccrninnnnns == 1,071 ==
Total Operating eXpenses ......ccoveervveereeeerrirmveeiesieesineeeereees 14,273 16,652 24 498
Loss from Operations ...........ccccvvevevieesiveneereseeniescseeeesraseessenns (649) (4,534) (13,915)
Other INCOME ...coouiiviiiiiiiiiieierice ettt abeaanees 128 368 832
Loss before inCOmMe taXEeS ....cvvvverriiniirerreeriireeseecreesraeneeas (521) (4,166) (13,063)
Income tax expense (benefit).......ccoccevevevvrirevniennicniceinnennn, (3) g 2 978
INEEL0SS .ttt sttt sconssns e (518) (4,174) (16,041)
Preferred stock dividend .........cccovviviivcience e, -- (447) (1,037)
Accretion of preferred stock and beneficial v o 7 o
CONVETSION fEALUTE .......ooveveriie et - (250) (5,027)
Increase to income applicable to common stockholders
from the conversion of preferred stock..........cccooiininiennen == 6,196 ==
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders .......... $ (518) $___1325 $_(22.105)
Basic net income (loss) per common Share...........coceervererrevnnnen. $§ (0.06) $ 016 $ (278
Basic weighted average number of common shares
OULSTANAING  .ecvovrrieieiiiriseeiet e eseaaes 8,292 8,184 7,948
Diluted net loss per common SHAre .......c...coovveervererneesrrnnennen $§ (006 $ (046) $ (2.78)
Diluted weighted average number of common shares '
OULSTANAING .eooviiiiiiiiiitiiiie et a ettt esn s 8,292 8,984 7,948

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Optika Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(In thousands, except share amounts)

Accumulated
Common Stock Series A-1 Preferred  Additional Other Total
Stock Paid-in ~ Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount __ Capital Deficit Income (1 oss) Equity
Balances at December 31, 1999 7,307,678 § 7 - S - § 18101 § (6,648) $ (104) $ 11,356
Common stock issued upon exercise
of stock options 760,042 1 - -- 1,357 -- -- 1,358
Common stock issued pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan 39,429 -- -- -- 124 - -- 124
Issuance of warrants in connection
with preferred stock offering - -- - - 5,123 - - 5,123
Issuance of common stock options for
preferred stock offering costs - -- -- - 376 - -- 376
Accretion of preferred stock - -- -- - (619) - - (619)
Preferred stock dividends -- - - - (1,037) - -- (1,037)
Unrealized gain on investments - -- -- -- -- -- 129
Net loss - - - - - (16,041) --
Total comprehensive loss (15.912)
Balances at December 31, 2000 8,107,149 8 - -- 23,425 (22,689) 25 769
Common stock issued pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan 107,564 -- - -- 127 -- -- 127
Accretion of preferred stock -- -- -- - (250) - -~ (250)
Preferred stock dividends - -- -- - (447) - - (447)

Conversion of Series A to Series A-1

preferred stock, net of exchange

costs - - 731,851 5,199 6,196 -- - 11,395
Comprehensive loss:

Unrealized gain on investments - -- -- - -- -- (25)
Net loss - --- -- - -- (4,174) -
Total comprehensive loss (4.199)
Balances at December 31, 2001 8,214,713 8 731,851 5,199 29,051 (26,863) - 7,395
Common stock issued upon exercise
of stock options 36,625 -- -- -- 46 - - 46
Common stock issued pursuant to
employee stock purchase plan 75,148 - -- -- 65 - -- 65
Net loss - - - - - (518) - (518)
Balances at December 31, 2002 8326486 % 8 7318518 5199 § 29162 § (27381) § - $ 6,988

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Optika Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

NEEIOSS oottt rn e s h 518y $ (4,174) § (16,041)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided (used) ‘

by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ...........cccceeverreeesieieneeresenenenn 667 987 1,230
(Gain) loss on disposal Of aSSets.....cccvvvrrivevrriecerieirerierenns (2) 294 23
Deferred tax expense (benefit) .........occcevvveevevrenreccerariiinieene -- -- 2,946
Changes in assets and liabilities: _ e
Accounts receivable, Net ......cccoovvveiieiieeiiiieecee e 239 (1,122) 1,828
OHhEr aSS1S ..ot e 16 476 (672)
Accounts payable ..o s (107) (566) 183
Accrued expenses and accrued compensation expense..... (695) 119 (93)
Deferred revVenue. .......c.ocvevvirreiieriniee e 1,197 47 75
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities........... 797 ___ (3,939 (10,521)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Capital expenditires .......cccccerreiererieiinerereie et . (205) (30) (1,260)
Proceeds from sale of equipment...........ccoceeeiennierencccrivnnncan 9 10 -
Sale and maturities of short-term investments..............co........ - 9,637 7,967
Purchase of short-term investments........cccceeveeveerevereseeesenveenn. - 6,100y ___(13527)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities............ (196) 3517 (6,820)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: - '
Expenditures for preferred stock exchange .........c.ccocvvennenean -- (151) --
Net proceeds from issuance of redeemable convertible
preferred stock and Warrants ...........cccecccviinnineceienninne e -- -- 14,692
Proceeds from issuance of common stocK.........ccoevvveriiirineene 111 127 1,482
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities........... 111 (24) 16,174
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............. 712 (446) (1,167)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..................... 1,746 2,192 3,359
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ........cccocvevrvvereeennnnen, $§ 2458 §- 1746 § 2,192

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

INCOME tAXES PAIA ..eveeieerieceeeeececitvrc e $ - % 8 § 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Optika Inc. and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Nature of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Optika Inc., a Delaware corporation, and its subsidiaries (“Optika” or the "Company") were formed in 1988
and are an enterprise content management (ECM) provider of imaging, workflow, collaboration and records
management software which allows companies to manage complex business processes and transactions and
leverage their enterprise resource planning (ERP) and line-of-business systems. Acorde provides the ability to
access and store multiple formats of business content, both digital and non-digital; automate processes across the
organization and externally with partners and customers; and enable online collaboration around these paper-
intensive or complex processes in real and near time.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Optika Inc. and its wholly owned
subsidiaries Optika Imaging Systems Europe, Ltd., Optika Information Systems, LTDA, Optika Imaging Systems,
GmbH and Optika Asia, Inc. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain
amounts in the prior years consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company earns revenue primarily from software licenses and related services. Revenue is recognized in
accordance with Statement of Position 97-2 (SOP 97-2), as amended by Statement of Position 98-9. For sales made
either through our Advantage Partners (APs) or by the Company license revenue is generally recognized upon
shipment when a non-cancelable license agreement has been signed or a purchase order has been received, delivery
has occurred, the fee is fixed or determinable and collectibility is probable. The license fees are not assumed to be
fixed or determinable if the fees are due more than 12 months after delivery or are based on achievement of a
milestone. Where applicable, fees from multiple element arrangements are unbundled and recorded as revenue as
the elements are delivered to the extent that vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value exists for the
various elements. The Company establishes VSOE of fair value on maintenance and professional services elements
based on prices charged when the same elements are sold in separate transactions. The Company has not
established VSOE on license elements. Revenue on undelivered and delivered elements is recorded using the
residual method in accordance with SOP 97-2, as amended.

Software maintenance revenues are deferred and recognized ratably over the maintenance period, which is
generally one year. The unrecognized portion of software maintenance revenues is recorded in the
accompanying balance sheets as deferred revenue. Other revenues are recognized as services are performed.

The Company does not grant rights to return products, except for defects in the performance of the products
relative to specifications and pursuant to standard industry shrink-wrapped license agreements which provide for a
30-day right of return if an end-user does not accept the terms of the shrink-wrapped license agreements. The 30-
day right of return begins upon product shipment. The Company’s software license agreements generally do not
provide price adjustments or rotation rights. The Company includes a 90-day limited warranty with the software
license, which entitles the end-user to corrections for documented program errors.

Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

The Company classifies highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less
as cash equivalents. For 2002 and 2001, short-term investments consisted of municipal bonds with maturity periods
within one-year. Such short-term investments are classified as available-for-sale as defined by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”
(SFAS 115) and accordingly are recorded at fair value. Increases or decreases in the fair value of investments
classified as available-for-sale are recorded in comprehensive income (loss), net of the related tax effect. Realized
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gains and losses from the sale of available-for-sale securities are determined on a specific identification basis.
There were no unrealized gains or losses on short-term investments as of December 31, 2002 and 2001. As of
December 31, 2002, and 2001 the carrying value of short-term investments equaled fair value.

Depreciation and Amortization

Computer equipment, office equipment and furniture are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-
line method over estimated useful lives ranging from three to seven years. Leasehold 1mprovements are amortized
over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the 1mprovements or the lease terms. '

Software Development Costs

All internal research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Statement of Financial Accountmg
Standards No. 86 (SFAS No. 86) requires the capitalization of certain software development costs once
technological feasibility is established. To date, the period between achieving technological feasibility and the
general availability of such software has been short. Consequently, software development costs qualifying for
capitalization have been insignificant and therefore, the Company has not capitalized any internal software
development costs.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes (SFAS No. 109). Under the asset and liability method of SFAS No. 109,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
or settled. Under SFAS 109, the effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
operations in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recognized to the extent deferred
tax assets are not more likely than not be realizable in the reasonably foreseeable future.

Foreign Currency Translation

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency of the consolidated corporation. For the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries, monetary assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rates in effect at the
balance sheet date and non-monetary assets are translated at historical rates. Results of operations are translated
using the average exchange rates during the period. Foreign currency translation and transaction gains or losses:
were not significant in any period presented.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and '
disclosure of contingent liabilities as well as the reported amounts of revenue and expenses. Significant estimates
have been made by management in several areas, including the collectibility of accounts receivable and the ability to
realize deferred tax benefits. Actual results could differ from these estimates, making it reasonably possible that a
change in these estimates could occur in the near term.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of the Company's financial instruments including cash and trade receivables and
payables, approximate their fair values.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed Of

The Company accounts for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. This statement requires that long-lived assets be reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
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be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of
an asset to future net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired,
the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the
fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less
costs to sell.

Stock Compensation Plans

The Company applies the intrinsic value-based method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principles
Board ("APB") Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations including
FASB Interpretation No. 44, "Accounting for Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation, an interpretation
of APB Opinion No. 25" issued in March 2000, to account for its fixed plan stock options. Under this method,
compensation expense is recorded on the date of grant only if the current market price of the underlying stock
exceeds the exercise price. SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” establishes accounting
and disclosure requirements using a fair value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation
plans. As allowed by SFAS No. 123, the Company has elected to continue to apply the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting described above, and has adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123. Had
compensation cost for the Company’s stock-based compensation plans been determined based on the fair value at
the grant dates for awards under those plans consistent with the method of SFAS No. 123, the Company’s pro-
forma results of operations and pro-forma net loss per share would have been as follows:

(In thousands, except per share data)
2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders:

As reported $ (518 § 1,325 $(22,105)

SFAS No. 123 Pro-forma (2,011) (400)  (24,651)
Basic net income (loss) per share:

As reported $§ (0.06) $ 016 $ (2.78)

SFAS No. 123 Pro-forma (0.24) (0.05) (3.11)
Diluted net loss per share:

As reported § (0.06) $ (046) $§ (2.78)

SFAS No. 123 Pro-forma (0.24) (0.66) (3.11)

Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is computed by
dividing net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders adjusted for dilutive effect of securities by the -
weighted average number of common shares outstanding and the dilutive effect of potential common shares
outstanding. Diluted EPS excludes 3,062,000, 2,513,000 and 2,220,000 options and warrants to purchase common
stock in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and 731,851 shares of redeemable convertible preferred stock in 2002
and 2000 because of their antidilutive effect.
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The foliowing is the reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted EPS computations
(in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year Ended
December 31
2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) applicable to common
stockholders. ... ..ot $ (518) $ 1,325 § (22,105
Weighted average common shares outstanding............... 8,292 8,184 7,948
Net income (loss) per common share .............c.cccvivvrennns $ (0.06) S 0.16 $ (2.78)
Diluted loss per share:
Net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders....... $ (518) $ 1,325 $ (22,105
Preferred stock dividend, accretion and effect
of exchange ..o -- (5,499) -
$  (518) § (4,174 § (22,109
Weighted average common shares outstanding............... 8,292 8,184 7,948
Assumed conversion of preferred stock. ......ccooveeirinenne == _R00 -
8,292 8,984 7,948
Diluted net loss per common share..........cccocorvvnerervenniens $ (0.06) § (046) $ (2.78)
Concentration

The Company has historically relied on a limited number of products to generate revenues and has
concentrated risk related to the continued and future market acceptance of such products. The Company currently
has no major customers accounting for more than 10% of its consolidated revenues; however, the Company’s
accounts receivable are heavily concentrated with resellers of the Company’s products. At December 31, 2002 one
customer receivable accounted for greater than 10% of the accounts receivable balance. Receivables from end users
are not concentrated in any particular industry.

2. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2002 2001
Computer and office equipment............oovrereiiiineeneneninnn, § 4,052 $ 3924
Leasehold improvements........coovuiviviuiiiicinniiiniannn, e 1,059 1,049
Furniture, fixtures'and other...................... ST - 646 _ 638 :
RTINSt U s ] ¢ G
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization................... _(4.862) _(4247)

$_ 895 5 1364

3. Line of Credit

The Company has a line of credit expiring in November 2003, whereby it is able to draw up to $3.0 million
bearing interest at the bank’s prime rate. At December 31, 2002, $2.5 million was available for borrowing
thereunder. Pursuant to the terms of the credit facility, any loans under the facility are secured by all of the
Company’s assets, with the exception of intellectual property and would be subject to certain covenants, including
prohibition of the payment of dividends on common stock. The Company has no debt outstanding at December 31,
2002,
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4. Lease Obligations

The Company has non-cancelable operating lease arrangements for office space and certain office equipment.
Future minimum annual operating lease payments for the years ending December 31 are as follows (in thousands):

Operating

Lease

Year ending December 31: ‘ Obligations
2003 e e e et $ 763
2004 e 754
2005 e e e are st n 687
2000 e et e 653
2007 oo 165
S 302

Rent expense related to these and other operating leases approximated $1,107,000, $1,400,000, and
$1,423,000 for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

5. Income Taxes

The Company's income tax expense (benefit) is comprised of the following (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31,
2002 2001 2000

Current:

Federal...coovovoveveiieinririiiiiren et eeenaes $ - % - $ -

StALE oo -- 3 2

FOTeign .ccoovviiiieie e 3) 5 30
Deferred:

Federal.....oooovvveiieeiicieeercee e -- -- 2,760

STALE .oeviririeiererie st -- -- 186

Total expense (benefit) from income taxes ....... 3 3 $ _8 35 __2978

The Company's net deferred tax assets are comprised of the tax effects of the following (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,

2002 2001

Deferred Tax Assets .

Net-operating loss carryforwards.........coocovcvvnininnnns $ 13,108  § 12,970
Depreciation and amortization........c.ccocvveverenneereenenanen 127 110
Tax credit carryforwards ........ccceevviveniiininsrencnecnennn, 1,720 1,593
ACCTUEA EXPENSES -.oeviririereceereriasrererereeresisseseeeesarenns 393 295
Deferred tax asset before valuation allowance ............. 15,348 14,968
Valuation allowance ..........c.cocceveviivecinecinc e

Net deferred tax asset




The benefit from income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the effective U.S. statutory rates
to the loss before income taxes as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended
December 31
2002 2001 2000
U.S. federal income tax benefit at statutory
TALE. ... eet veereeceieeseeresreseetestes e e et etaseesesbese st saeaaeeseane $ (182) $ (1.458) S (4,572)
Increases (decreases) resulting from: . ,
State taxes, net of federal benefit.........ccoeveeveererininnn. 21 (349) (1,093)
Stock Option EXErCiSEs ......ccoueererrererrcerearererisrerees - - (2,554)
Non-deductible iems ........c.ocovvevvrreiireseierirricrece s - 21 31
Increase in valuation allowance ..........ccccoeveveveiiieennen. 380 1,855 11,593
Foreign tax rate differentialS..........coeeverecnnnnnn. 15 15 39
Tax Credits .ovvveveicreerecie e (150) (200) (360)
Other, et ... 45 124 (106)
Expense (benefit) from income taxes ........cc.ceeee.. £ 3y & ___ 8 £ 2978

At December 31, 2002, the Company has net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $33,306,000 that
expire beginning in 2009 through 2022. The net operating loss carryforward includes $2,554,000 in deductions
relating to stock option exercises which will be credited to additional paid-in capital when the carryforwards are
realized. Additionally, the Company has various tax credit carryforwards aggregating approximately $1,720,000
that expire beginning in 2005 through 2022.

The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its carryforward tax benefits to the extent that it
believes that it is more likely than not all of such benefits will not be realized in the near term. The Company’s
assessment of this valuation allowance was made using all available evidence, both positive and negative. In
particular the Company considered both its historical results and its projections of profitability for only reasonably
foreseeable future periods. The Company’s realization of its recorded net deferred tax assets is dependent on future
taxable income and therefore, the Company is not assured that such benefits will be realized.

6.  Capital Stock and Benefit Plans
Stock Compensation Plans

At December 31, 2002 the Company has two stock-based compensation plans, a fixed stock option plan and
an employee stock purchase plan. The Company applies APB Opinion 25 and related interpretations in accounting
for its plans. The Company grants stock options with exercise prices equal to the fair market value of its common
stock on the date of grant. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for its fixed stock option plan
and its employee stock purchase plan.

Fixed Stock Option Plan

Under the Company’s stock option plan, the Company may grant incentive and non-qualified stock options to
its employees and directors for up to 5,114,033 shares of common stock. Under the plan, options are granted at an
exercise price not-less than the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant. The options generally vest ratably
over two to four years and expire ten years after the date of grant. Certain options are subject to accelerated vesting
provisions.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing
model with the following assumptions used for grants in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively; no estimated dividends;
expected volatility of 122% for 2002, 112% for 2001 and 116% for 2000; risk-free interest rates between 2.94% and
4.74% in 2002, 3.91% and 4.93% in 2001, 4,99% and 6.71% in 2000; and expected option terms of 5 years for all
years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s stock option plan, excluding the warrants issued in connection with
the Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock discussed in note 7, as of December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000 and
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changes during the years then ended are presented in the following table. No warrants were outstanding at
December 31, 2002.

2002 2001 2000
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
(000’s) Exercise Price (000’s) Exercise Price (000’s) Exercise
Price
Outstanding at beginning
of year 2816 $ 3.07 2,220 $ 5.16 2,329 322
Granted 446 1.07 1,579 1.25 1,082 8.33
Exercised 37N 1.25 -- -- (431) 8.53
Forfeited (163) 3.58 (983) (4.87) (760) 1.80
Outstanding at end of year 3062 _ % 2.78 2,816 $ 3.07 22208 5.16
Options and warrants :
exercisable at year end 2,023 § 297 1,270 $ 3.10 723 % 3.45
Weighted average fair value
of options granted during
the year $ 1.11 3 1.01 $ 6.96

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding at December 31, 2002:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Number Weighted Weighted Number Weighted
Range of Outstanding Average Average Exercisable Average
Exercise Prices  at 12/31/02 Remaining Exercise at 12/31/02 Exercise
(000’s) Contractual Life Price (000’s) Price
$.75-1.20 660 91 § .95 76 5 .99
$1.31 1,036 8.1 1.31 909 1.31
$1.50-3.81 825 5.0 2.88 681 ' 2.94
$4.00-36.00 541 _ 69 7.64 357 5.07
' 3,062 73 _$ 278 2023 8 2.97

In connection with the Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock discussed in note 7, the Company issued
options to purchase 25,000 shares of common stock for offering costs to a non-employee. The fair value of this
option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
assumptions; no estimated dividends; expected volatility of 97%; risk-free interest rate of 5.25%; and an option life
of 3 years. The fair value of $376,000 related to this grant was included in the stock offering costs.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”) was adopted by the Board of
Directors in March 2000 and approved by the Company’s stockholders in May 2000. Under the 2000 Purchase
Plan, the Company is authorized to issue up to 300,000 shares of common stock to eligible employees effective
August 1,2000. On July 31, 2000 the Company’s previous Employee Stock Purchase Plan terminated as all shares
were issued. Under the terms of the Purchase Plans, employees may elect to have up to 10% of their total cash
earnings withheld by payroll deduction to purchase the Company’s common stock. The purchase price of the stock
is 85% of the lower of the market price on the participant’s entry date into the Purchase Plan or the semi-annual
purchase date.

The Company sold 75,148 and 107,564 shares to employees in 2002 and 2001, respectively, under the
Company’s 2000 Purchase Plan. Under the previous Purchase Plan, the Company sold 39,429 shares to employees
in 2000. The fair market value of each stock purchase plan grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes model with the following assumptions for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively; no estimated dividends for all
years; expected volatility of 122%, 112% and 116%, risk free interest rates of 3.81% and 4.24% for 2002, 4.76%

ARS-23




and 4.86% for 2001 and 4.99% and 6.71% for 2000; and an expected life of 0.5 years for all years. The weighted--
average fair values of those purchase rights granted in 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $0.84, $0.58 and $8.26,
respectively. As the Purchase Plan is a qualified plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 423, no related
compensation cost is recognized in the financial statements.

401(k) Retirement Savings Plan

Effective January 1, 1994, the Company adopted a qualified 401(k) retirement savings plan for all erhployees.
Participants may contribute up to 15% of their gross pay. The Company contributions are discretionary and vest at
20% per year over five years. The Company contributed $228,000 in 2002, $204,000 in 2001 and $271,000 in
2000.

7. Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock

In 2000 we completed the sale of 731,851 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, and warrants to
purchase an aggregate of 307,298 shares of our common stock to an investor group consisting principally of
Thomas Weisel Capital Partners and affiliated entities for an aggregate purchase price of $15 million. The preferred
stock was subject to mandatory redemption provisions on the eighth anniversary of the issuance for cash equal to
the stated liquidation preference plus accumulated unpaid dividends. The preferred stock was convertible to
common stock at the holder’s option based upon the conversion formula as defined in the preferred stock Certificate
~ of Designation. "The $15 million in gross proceeds received was allocated as follows: approximately $5.5 million
for the preferred stock, approximately $4.4 million for the beneficial conversion feature, and approximately $5.1
million for the warrants. The initial carrying amount of the preferred stock was increased by periodic accretions so
that the carrying amount would have been equal to the redemption amount ($15 million) at the redemption date in
2008. The periodic increases in the carrying amount were effected by charges against additional paid in capital. As
the preferred stock was convertible into common stock at any time, the beneficial conversion amount was accreted
in its entirety at the date of issuance of the preferred stock. The warrants were to expire in 2008 and as of May 7,
2001 no warrants were exercised. The fair value of the warrants was separately recorded as warrants for the
purchase of our common stock and as a reduction to the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock.

On May 7, 2001, we entered into an Exchange Agreement with Thomas Weisel Capital Partners L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership, certain of its affiliates and RKB Capital, L.P. (the "Purchasers") pursuant to which we
have issued Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, having the terms and provisions set forth in the Certificate of
Designation designating the Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock, on a one-for-one basis, in return for the
exchange, surrender and cancellation of the Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock. The Series A-1 .
Preferred issued in exchange for the Series A Preferred is substantially identical to the Series A Preferred. The .
Series A-1 Preferred contains certain changes from the Series A which include eliminating the dividend and '
redemption requirements and modifying the protective and liquidation provisions thereof. In connection with this
transaction, we also purchased the warrants associated with the Series A Preferred for an aggregate of $0.01. The
Series A-1 Preferred is convertible to common stock at the holders’ option based upon the conversion formula as -
defined in the Certificate of Designation. Upon the occurrence of a change of control event, such as a sale of assets
or merger in which the consideration to be received consists solely of stock, the holders of the Series A-1 Preferred
Stock are entitled to receive the greater of (i) a liquidation preference of approximately $22.5 million in stock or (it)
the amount of stock they would have otherwise received upon conversion to common stock, prior to any distribution
to the holders of our common stock. Upon the occurrence of any change of control event which includes a cash.
component, the holders of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock are entitled to convert their shares into enough common
shares to enable them to receive at least $22.5 million in cash following such conversion. The holders of the Series
A-1 Preferred must approve any stock or cash based change of control event in which they would not receive at
least $22.5 million in the form of a liquid security, provided that in the event that the holders of the Series A-1
Preferred stock elect not to approve a change of control event, we have the option of repurchasing the Series A-1
Preferred Stock for $22.5 million and proceeding with the transaction. As of February 23, 2003 the conversion
formula was 1.5 shares of common for every share of preferred.

The Series A-1 Preferred was recorded in stockholders’ equity at its fair value. The difference between the
carrying value of the Series A Preferred at the time of the exchange and the fair value of the Series A-1 Preferred of
$5.35 million (as determined by an independent valuation) was recorded as an increase in additional paid-in capital
and as a one-time adjustment to net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders. As a result of the Exchange
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Agreement, future periods will not have adjustments to income for accumulating dividends or allocations of the
discounts associated with the Series A Preferred Stock.

8. Segment Information

The Company has only one segment under the criteria of SFAS No. 131, The following table presents information
by geographic area as of and for the respective fiscal periods (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

‘ 2002 2001 2000
Total revenues attributable to:

United States $16292 $14,726 $ 13,731
International 1581 1,934 2,375
Total $17873 316660 §.16106

Revenue is classified based on the country in which the Company’s Advantage Partner or customer is located.
Revenue from International locations is attributable to our presence in the United Kingdom, Latin America and
Asia. No International location was responsible for more than 7% of our total revenue for the years ended

December 31, 2002, 2001 and 2000. International assets and liabilities are insignificant to the overall presentation
of segment information.

9.  Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Charges

On February 6, 2001, the Company reduced our workforce by 42 employees to align our expenses more
closely with revenues. This reduction in force resulted in approximately $1.1 million of restructuring charges in the
first quarter of 2001. This restructuring charge consisted of $652,000 of severance costs, $240,000 of lease
termination and $179,000 of asset write-offs, All costs were paid before the end of 2002. The table below outlines
the restructuring accrual activity through December 31, 2002 (in thousands):

Restructuring charge $ 652 $ 240 $ 179 $ 1,071
Usage (632) 141) a79 (952)
* Balance December 31, 2001 $ 20 $ 99 $ - $ 119
Usage -0 99 S 119
Balance December 31, 2002 R $ —= $ - § -

10. Contingencies

. The Company is, from time to time, subjected to certain claims, assertions or litigation by outside parties as
part of its ongoing business operations. The outcomes of any such contingencies are not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the financial condition or operations of the Company. In addition, in the ordinary course of
business, the Company has issued a letter of credit as security for performance on the operating lease for its
headquarters and as a result, is contingently liable in the amount of approximately $220,000 at December 31, 2002

and the Company has set up a cash management service in the amount of $240,000 to cover our bank’s potential
exposure for the direct deposit of payroll and other services.
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11, Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(in thousands) Allowance
Beginning Increase Recoveries/ Ending
Balance (Decrease) (Write-offs) Balance

Deducted from asset account-
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Year ended ,

December 31,2002 ....cooovrvrrecececennn, $ 1o 3 37 § (40) $ 107
Year ended

December 31, 2001 ...c.cooevevrrirenenn, 86 10 14 110
Year ended

December 31,2000 .......ccooevecrennnnnn. 90 48 ‘ (52) ‘ 86

12, Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following table presents unaudited quarterly operating results for each of the Company’s eight quarters in
the two-year period ended December 31, 2002:

(in thousands, except per share amounts) Quarter Ending
Mar. 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Fiscal Year 2002
Total revenues $§ 3,874 $§ 4475 $ 4,650 $§ 4,874
Gross profit 2,923 3,389 3,525 3,787
Income (loss) from operations (560) 117y .. 14 .14
Net income (loss) applicable to :
common stockholders (526) (74) 45 34 .
Basic income (loss) per share (0.06) (0.01) 0.01 0.00
Diluted income (loss) per share (0.06) (0.01) 0.01 0.00
Fiscal Year 2001
Total revenues $ 3,943 $ 4262 $ 3,871 § 4,584
Gross profit 2,717 3,187 2,771 3,437
Income (loss) from operations(1) (3,293) (759) (644) 162
Net income (loss) applicable to
common stockholders(2) (3,699) 5,337 (557 244
Basic income (loss) per share (0.45) 0.65 (0.07) 0.03
Diluted income (loss) per share (0.45) (0.07) (0.07) 0.03

(1) The quarter énded March 31, 2001 includes a restructuring charge of $1.1 million for the severance of 42
employees, termination of leases and write-offs of related assets.

(2) In connection with the conversion of the Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock into Series A-
1 Preferred Stock in May 2001, the Company recorded a one-time $6.2 million increase to net income
applicable to common stockholders representing the difference between the carrying value of the Series A
Preferred Stock and the fair value of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock at the conversion date.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Optika Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Optika Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ending December 31, 2002. These
consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Optika Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

KPMG LLP

Denver, Colorado
January 23, 2003




COMMON STOCK DATA

Effective February 4, 2003 our common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Small Cap Market under the
symbol “OPTK.” Previously, our stock was traded on the NASDAQ National Market under the same symbol. The
following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices per share of the common stock for the periods
indicated, as reported on the NASDAQ National Market.

Quarter Ended HIGH LOW

December 31, 2002, ... it $ 1.20 $ .64
September 30, 2002, ... oo $ 1.68 $ .85
JUNE 30, 2002, . e $ 2.34 $ 1.47
March 31, 2002, ..ot $ 274§ 1.00
December 31, 2001 ... i $ 129 § .69
September 30, 2001, ...t $ 130 % 72
June 30, 2000 . .o $ 1.45 $ .93
March 31, 2000 ... $ 2.09 $ 5

As of March 20, 2003 we estimate there were approximately 150 holders of record of our common stock.
This does not include the number of persons whose stock is in nominee or “street” name accounts through brokers.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock since our inception, and do not expect

to pay cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. Qur bank line of credit currently prohibits the
payment of cash dividends without the consent of the bank.
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